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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting their 8% Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 (“Financial
Year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the financial year under review, the Company has earned profit of Rs. 22,676 (INR in
Thousands). The Financial Summary of the Company for the F.Y. ended 2023-24 is given

below:

Particulars Year Ended on 31 March, 2024 Year Ended on 31 March, 2023
(Figures in INR Thousands) (Figures in INR Thousands)

Total Revenue 1,23,353 2,70,717
Other Income 1,753 4,866
Total Income 1,25,106 2,75,583
Total Expenses 95,911 2,38,966
Profit /loss before taxation 29,195 36,617
Less: Tax Expenses 6,519 7,058
Profit / loss after tax 22,676 29,559

RESERVES

During the year, X45,17,000 were transferred to the Statutory Reserve created under the
provisions of Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (""NHB Act").

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the NHB pertaining
to non- performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets etc. As at March 31,
2024, the Company’s capital adequacy ratio (CAR) stood at 106.25 % of which Tier I capital
was 105.67% and Tier II capital was 0.58% as per regulatory normes.

ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals against or by the Company impacting the going concern status or
operations of the Company in future.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT

Material changes and commitment which have occurred between the end of the financial year
of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, are as
follows:

Change in Directorships:

S. No. Name Designation Change Date of Change

1 Aparna Bihany Director & Resignation | 04/04/2024
Whole Time Director

2 Rakesh Kaul Additional Director Appointment | 04/04/2024

3 Gagan Aggarwal | Additional Director & | Appointment | 27/05/2024

Whole Time Director

There are no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred after March 31, 2024 till the date of this report.

MARKET BORROWING

The Company had issued listed NCDs, which were all paid off during the year.

The Company complied with the provisions relating to the “Housing Finance Companies
Issuance of Non- Convertible Debentures on private placement basis (NHB) Directions, 2014”,
“RBI HFC Directions, 2021” and “Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023” as applicable and has been regular in payment of
principal and interest on the NCDs.

REGULATORY GUIDELINES

The power of regulation of Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) has been conferred on
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National Housing Board (NHB) to carry out the function of
supervision of HFCs. RBI had issued ‘Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021’ (RBI HFC Directions) which are
applicable on the Company.

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions and requirements of the
RBI/HFC Directions and other directions/ guidelines issued by RBI/NHB wherever
applicable.

LENDING OPERATIONS

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (NBFC-HFC)
and is engaged in Housing Finance activities in India. All other activities of the Company
revolve around the main business activities of the Company.
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BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING
THE YEAR/STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIR

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited (CCSPL) and
is registered with the National Housing Bank to carry on housing finance activities. The
Company has earned interest income of X 1,02,688 (INR in Thousands) on loans. There are no
outstanding material commitments, tax liabilities etc. affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

During the financial year 2022-23, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the
scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme”) for the amalgamation with its Holding Company, Clix
Capital Services Private Limited. The company approached all the stakeholders including
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National Housing Board (NHB) for No objection for the same.
RBI had vide its letter dated October 27, 2022 and January 31, 2023 given its no objection for
the Holding Company & the Company respectively. In the interim both the companies are re-
evaluating the option of going ahead with the scheme.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company had no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company did not accept any public deposit(s) under the provisions
contained in section 73 of the act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

AUDITORS

- Statutory Auditors
M/s DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm registration no. 116886W) continues to be the
Statutory Auditor of the Company till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.

« Proposed Auditors

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, has, subject to the approval of Shareholders in the
ensuing AGM, proposed appointment of Ravi Rajan & Co.,, LLP (Firm registration no.
009073N/N500320) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of three years.

Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP is Delhi based CA Firm with more than 20 years of experience in Bank and NBFC
Audits.

Auditor’s Report: The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
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+ Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("'the Act') and Rule 9 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s VKC
& Associates, Company Secretaries (ICSI Firm Registration No. P2018DE077000) was appointed as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

The Secretarial Audit Report as given by the Secretarial Auditor in the form of MR-3 is appended as
Annexure- III to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory and does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

+ Internal Audit & Control

The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of internal
controls with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an
independent, objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organization’s risk management, control and governance processes. The framework is commensurate
with the nature of the business and the size of its operations. Internal auditing at the Company involves
the utilization of a systematic methodology for analyzing business processes or organizational
problems and recommending solutions to add value and improve the organization’s operations. The
audit approach verifies compliance with the regulatory, operational and system related procedures
and controls.

During the financial year under review, no material or serious observations have been received from
the Auditors of the Company citing inefficacy or inadequacy of such controls.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, design/operation were observed per the provisions of Rule 8(5) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any
incident of fraud to the Audit, during the year under review.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
and notified under Section 133 of the Act and other provisions of the Act. The details of the accounting
treatment followed during the financial year are mentioned in Notes to Financial Statements.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised a policy for selection and
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management Employees and
their remuneration namely, Nomination & Remuneration Policy.
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The Nomination & Remuneration policy of the Company is placed on the website and can be accessed
through the link: Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Salient features of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy, inter alia, includes:

e To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence for
appointment and removal of a director.

e To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel which involves a balance between the
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short-term and long-term objectives appropriate to the working
of the Company and its goals.

CREDIT RATING

The NCDs issued by the company were redeemed on 30th September, 2023. The last credit rating was
taken from Acuite Ratings & Research, which was ACUITE A+ | Stable | Downgraded |Negative to Stable.
Thereafter, neither new NCDs were issued by the company and nor any credit rating was required to
be obtained.

SHARE CAPITAL & CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there were changes in the Share Capital of the Company as 2,00,000
Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each, have been issued to Clix Capital Services Private Limited on
rights basis. The authorized and paid-up capital was increased by an amount of Rs. 20,00,000 and now
stands at Rs. 55,20,00,000, as on 31st March, 2024.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Section 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2024 in
Form MGT-7 shall be available (upon submission with MCA) on the website of the Company which can
be accessed through the website link: Clix Capital .

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being incorporated for providing housing finance services, does not carry out any activity
relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and export of materials, goods or services.
Given the nature of the activities of the Company the provisions pertaining to conservation of energy
and technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo are not applicable to the Company.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
INCLUDING THOSE WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

S.No. | Name of the Director Designation Date of Change | Appointment/resignation
1 Kaushik Ramakrishnan Director -- -

2 Vikram Rathi Director -- --

3 Vinu Rajat Kalra Company Secretary 17/08/2023 Appointment

4 Amit Kumar Jain CFO -- --
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and
business strategy. The Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2023-24, the
details of Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report
annexed as Annexure I which forms part of this report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION - BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees
and individual Directors for the financial year 2023-24 in pursuance to the provisions of the Act and
Rules made thereunder as amended from time to time.

The Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussed the performance in line with the
requirements of Act, regulations, Directions and the relevant policies of the Company, further basis the
discussions, attendance and involvement of the directors during the meetings the performance was
found to be satisfactory. The performance of the Board and Committees was evaluated based on the
terms of reference, frequency of meetings and the decisions taken during the year. The Committee
found that the duties as per the statutory requirements of the Board and committees were duly met and
the performance was satisfactory.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES/INVESTMENTS

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India. Hence
provisions related to Loans, Guarantees/Investments under Section 186 of the Act are not applicable.
However, the details of loans, guarantees and investments made by the company are mentioned under
the relevant head of the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered or modified during the financial year, were pursuant to
Section 188(1) of the Act on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business accordingly, no
transactions are being reported in Form AOC-2.

The related party disclosure as required under Clause 3A of Annexure [V of NHB Act is given in Note
no. C36 of Financials Statements enclosed to this Annual Report.

Further, the Disclosure of related party transaction also forms part of Schedule to Accounts annexed to
the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company is in the business of lending home loans and loans against properties. The Company has
in place effective Risk Management framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified,
controlled, and priced in a manner that the Company can continue its operations in a profitable and
sustainable manner. Risk Management is continuous process and Company is constantly monitoring
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its applicable risk and seek modern and scientific methods to mitigate the same. Further, the Company
has Risk Management Committee to monitor and evaluate the same.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company
hereby state and confirm that:

e In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

e The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

e The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

e The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURES UNDER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE ACT, 2013

The total employee strength of the Company is less than 10, thus, the provisions of Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace Act are not applicable.

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM

Creating a fraud and corruption-free culture has always been at the Company’s core. Keeping in view
of the same and in compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the Act read with the rules
made thereunder, the Whistle-Blower Policy is formulated as part of the Vigil Mechanism established
by the Company for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns, to provide a secure
environment and to encourage employees to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or
activities in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel
action against those employees who report such Practices in good faith.

This Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is framed in context of these statutory requirements and
to put in place an appropriate framework for this purpose.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has implemented governance practices as mandated by law. The Company is committed
to transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on business ethics.

The report on corporate governance is annexed as Annexure-I and forms part of this Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the MD&A Report forms an
integral part of this report and gives details of the overall industry structure, economic developments,
performance and state of affairs of your Company’s business in India, risk management systems and
other material developments during the year under review, as per Annexure-II.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the period under review the Board of the Company had the following committees:

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, relating to the Composition of Audit Committee are applicable on the Company. The
members of the Audit Committee met 3 (Three) times during the period under review, the details of
Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed
as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are applicable to the Company. The members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3
(Three) times during the year. The details of Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned
in the Corporate Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

III. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ALCO)

Board of Directors has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) for the company
as per RBI Regulations. The members of Asset Liability Management Committee met Four (4) times
during the year the details of Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate
Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has in place a Risk Management Committee which meets at regular intervals to take note
on various risks involved and bring out means and measures to reduce the risks. The Committee met
thrice (3), during the year. The composition, meetings and attendance are detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report which is annexed at Annexure- I and forms part of this Report.

V. IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted IT Strategy Committee in compliance with the requirements of Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”). The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of IT strategy
and policy documents, information security and any other matter related to IT governance. The
Committee met once during the financial year. The detailed information about committee meetings,
members and attendance is further provided in the Corporate Governance Report which is annexed at
Annexure- I and forms part of this Report.
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DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The details of the Debenture Trustee of the Company are as under:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Office Address: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony, Kothrud Road, Pune, Maharashtra (411038)
Contact No.: 0120- 25280081

Email Id: dt@ctltrustee.com

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA & CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has received undertaking and declaration from each Director on fit and proper criteria
in terms of the provisions of Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance Directions, 2016
(NHB Directions). The Board of Directors has confirmed that all existing Directors are fit and proper to
continue to hold the position as Directors on the Board. The same was reviewed by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee under NHB Directions. All the Directors of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

DETAILS OF UNCLAIMED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

During the year under review, all NCDs were redeemed and as on date, no debentures are outstanding.
Thus, the said provisions are not applicable on the Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued and as amended by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Directors wish to place on record their heartfelt appreciation for the efforts of the Company’s
stakeholder. During this financial year no order has been passed by the authorities which impacts the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 6th September, 2024 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Kaushik Ramakrishnan
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 08303198
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ANNEXURE- 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company follows high standards of corporate governance principles and best practices. The
corporate governance policy of the Company prescribe a set of systems and processes guided by the
core principles of transparency, disclosure, accountability, compliances, ethical conduct and the
commitment to promote the interests of all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors are responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance
in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and
long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance
practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. We keep
our governance practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices across
the Country.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At Clix Housing, we believe that a diversified, active and well-informed Board is necessary to ensure
highest standards of Corporate Governance. We believe that an enlightened Board consciously creates
a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance. The statutory and other significant and material information is placed before the Board to
enable it to discharge its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the
Company’s corporate governance philosophy.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board composition during the year and upto the date of this report is as under:

S.No. Name of Director Capacity DIN No. of No. of Remunerati | No. of shares
Director Since Board other on, Salary, held in and
Meetings | directors or any convertible
Attended hips other instruments
considerati
on paid
1. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Non- 08303198 6 9 Nil -
Ramakrishnan Executive
2. Vikram Rathi | 11/02/2022 Non- 08769167 6 0 Nil 1#
Executive
3. Aparna 02/12/2022 | Whole- Time | 09039798 5 -- Nil --
Bihany* Director
4. Rakesh Kaul 04/04/2024 Non- 03386665 - 2 Nil 1#
Executive
5. Gagan 27/05/2024 | Whole- Time | 10423472 - 1 Nil 1#
Aggarwal Director
*Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024.
# Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.
10
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The Company’s Board consists of 4 (Four) Directors.

S. No. Name of Director Capacity Nature of Change Effective Date

1. Kaushik Ramakrishnan Non- Executive - --

2. Vikram Rathi Non-Executive - --

3. Aparna Bihany -- Resignation 04/04/2024

4. Rakesh Kaul Non-Executive Appointment 04/04/2024

5. Gagan Aggarwal Whole Time Director Appointment 27/05/2024
Note:

1. None of the Directors holds office as a director, including alternate director, in more than twenty
(20) Companies at the same time. None of them hold directorships in more than ten (10) Public
Companies. For reckoning the limit of Public Companies, directorships of Private Companies that
are either Holding or Subsidiary Company of a Public Company are included.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and business
strategy. During the financial year, the Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times i.e., on 26t May 2023, 14th
July 2023, 26t July 2023, 09t August 2023, 17t August 2023 and 8t December 2023 and the gap
between two meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days as required under Section 173 of
the Act.

The details of Board, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S. No. Name of Capacity Total No. of Attendance during | No. of shares held in
Director Meeting Held the meeting company
1. Kaushik Non- Executive 6 6 -
Ramakrishnan
2. Vikram Rathi | Non- Executive 6 6 1#
3. Aparna Bihany* - 6 5 --
4. Rakesh Kaul ** | Non- Executive 6 -- 1#
5. Gagan Whole Time 6 -- 1#
Aggarwal*** Director

* Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024.

** Appointed w.e.f. 04/04/2024.

** Appointment w.e.f. 27/05/2024.

#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

Agenda papers along with the necessary documents and information are circulated to the Board and
the members of the Board Committee(s) well in advance before each meeting in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standards. In addition to the general business items, the following
items/ information is regularly placed before the Board and/or Committees to the extent applicable:
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* Quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company;

- Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board of Directors;

- Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important;

- Strategic business proposal or activities to be undertaken;

+ Purchase and disposal of major fixed assets;

« Sale of material nature of investments and assets, which are not in the normal course of Business;

« Reports on Internal Controls Systems, Internal Audit Reviews and Statutory Audit reviews etc.;

- Related Party Transactions;

- Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ Services; and
« Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

All material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused
discussions at the meeting. The quantum and quality of information supplied by the management to
the Board goes well beyond the minimum requirements stipulated under the Act, Secretarial Standards
on Meetings of the Board of Directors issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as
per the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations, wherever applicable.

MINUTES OF BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Minutes of proceedings of Board and Committee meetings are recorded and draft minutes are
circulated to Board/Committee members for their comments and/or confirmation within 15 days from
the date of the meeting. The inputs, if any, of the Board & Committee Members are duly incorporated
in the minutes after which these are entered in the minute book within 30 days from the date of
meeting.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES
I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 and Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as applicable, the Board had constituted Audit Committee.
The members of the Audit Committee met Three (3) times during the period under review i.e, on 26th
May 2023, 9th August 2023 and 8th December 2023.

The details of Committee membership, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S.No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance No. of
Director Committee of during the | shares held
Since Meetings | meetings |in company
Held
1. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Member 3 3 =
Ramakrishnan

2. Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 3 3 1#

3. Aparna Bihany* - - 3 3 --

4. Rakesh Kaul** 04/04/2024 Member 3 -- 1#

*Resigned with w.e.f. 04/04/2024.
** Appointed w.e.f. 04/04/2024.

#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.
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All the Members have the ability to read and understand financial statements and have relevant finance
and / or audit experience.

Terms of reference

The composition of the Audit Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting
functions are in accordance with the Act and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”).
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include:

To review the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the audit
process, the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code
of Conduct of the Company;

To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company and discuss with Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;
To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of Audit
process;

To examine the financial statement, financial results and the Auditors’ report thereon;

To approve transactions or any subsequent modification to the transactions of the Company with
related parties;

To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

To approve payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
Auditors;

To evaluate internal financial controls;

To monitor end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities etc. and

To review Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

II. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) the Board has constituted the NRC. The Committee met Three (3) times during the
year on 26th May 2023, 17th August 2023 and 8th December 2023.

The composition of the NRC, details of meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance | No. of shares held
Director Committee of during the in company
Since Meetings | meetings
Held
Kaushik 17/02/2021 Member 3 3 -
Ramakrishnan
Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 3 3 1#
Aparna Bihany* -- -- 3 3 --
Rakesh Kaul ** | 04/04/2024 Member 3 - 1#

*Resigned with effect from 04/04/2024.
** Appointed with effect from 04/04/2024
# Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.
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Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the NRC, inter alia, include:

e Toensure 'fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing directors

e To scrutinize the fit and proper declarations
e To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.
e To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and

individual directors.

e Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent
director.

e Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;
e Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

III. ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE

In accordance with the requirement of Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Asset - Liability
Management (ALM) System, the Board has constituted Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The
ALCO Committee met Four (4) times, during the year on 27t June 2023, 27t September 2023, 21st
December 2023, 28th March,2024.

The Committee Membership, meeting details and attendance are as under:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance | No. of shares
Director Committee of during the held in
Since Meetings meetings company
Held
1. Rakesh Kaul | 04/04/2024 Member 4 4 1#
2. Gagan 27/05/2024 Member 4 4 1#
Aggarwal
3. Vikram Rathi | 11/01/2022 Member 4 3 1#
Other Members
4. Vijaykumar - Member 4 2 --
Ramakrishna
5. Dhariya Parikh - Member 4 4 -
6. Ruchika - Member 4 3 -
Sharma
7. Naman Jain - Member 4 4 --
8. Ankit - Member 4 4 --
Aggarwal
0. Shivam - Member 4 4 --
Miglani*

*Resigned w.e.f. 30t August, 2024.

#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the ALCO Committee, inter alia, include:
e Adherence to the risk tolerance/ limits set by the Board

e Implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the NBFC

e Decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities,

CLIX HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Public & Non Confidential Information

14



Sale of assets as a source of funding,

The structure, responsibilities, and controls for managing liquidity risk, and
Overseeing the liquidity positions of all branches

Trading risk management

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As per the requirement Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, the Board has, for monitoring legal risks and mitigating the
risks due to regular review of changes in the regulatory framework, constituted the Risk Management
Committee (RMC). The RMC met thrice, on 11th August 2023, 07t November 2023 and 0274 February,
2024 during the Financial Year.

The Composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. of | Attendance No. of shares

Director Committee Meetings | during the held in
since Held meetings company
1. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Member 3 3 --
Ramakrishnan

2. Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 3 3 1#

3. Aparna -- Member 3 0 --
Bihany*

4. Rakesh Kaul** 04/04/2024 Member 3 -- 1#

*Resigned with effect from 04/04/2024.
** Appointed with effect from 04/04/2024.
#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee, inter alia, include:

To formulate a detailed risk management policy.

To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and
evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be
subject to review by the Risk Management Committee.

Approving a framework to evaluate the risks and materiality of all existing and prospective
outsourcing and the policies that apply to such arrangements;

Laying down appropriate approval authorities for outsourcing depending on risks and
materiality;

Setting up suitable administrative framework of senior management for the purpose of these
directions;

Undertaking regular review of outsourcing strategies and arrangements for their continued
relevance, and safety and soundness and
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e Deciding on business activities of a material nature to be outsourced and approving such

arrangements

e Toreview of material outsourcing records on half-yearly basis

V.

The Company has formulated IT Strategy Committee in compliance with the requirements of Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”), Master Circular - Information Technology framework for NBFC sector and other

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

applicable RBI Regulations. The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of IT
strategy and policy documents, information security and any other matter related to IT governance.
The Committee met twice (2) during the financial year, i.e. on 28%h September, 2023 and 14t March,

2024.

The Composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. of | Attendance No. of
No. Director Committee Meetings during the shares
Since Held meetings held in
company
1. Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 2 2 1#
Gagan 27/05/2024 Member 0 --
Aggarwal*
3. Rakesh Kaul** | 04/04/2024 Member 2 -- 1#

*Appointed w.e.f. 27/05/2024.
**Appointed w.e.f. 04/04/2024.
#Shares held as hominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee, inter alia, include:

e Toidentify system deficiencies and defects at the system design, development and testing phases
e To provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including deliverables to be
realized at each phase of the project and milestones to be reached according to the project
timetable.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of location, day, date and time of the General Meetings held during the last three years and
resolutions passed there at are given below.

Video conferencing (VC) /|Date-29th September, 2023]-Appointment of Ms. Aparna Bihany as a

Financial Type & Location Day, Date & Time Summary of Special Business
Year passed
2023-24 Annual General Meeting Day - Friday

Other Audio Visual means  [Time - 3:00 PM whole-time director.

(OAVM) / (e-AGM)

Extra  Ordinary  GeneralDay - Wednesday -Increase in Authorized Capital
Meeting Date - 19th July, 2023

Video conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio Visual means

Time - 5:00 PM

(OAVM) / (e-AGM)
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2022-23 Annual General Meeting Day - Friday - Regularization of Additional
Video conferencing (VC) /|Date-30thSeptember, 2022 Director Mr. Vikram Rathi as a
Other Audio Visual means  Time - 12 Noon Director of the Company.
(OAVM) / (e-AGM) -Approval of Related Party Transaction
with Clix Capital Services Private
Limited
2021-22  |Annual  General = MeetingDay - Thursday -Appointment of Kaushik
Registered office- 4th Floor,Date - 30th September, 2021] Ramakrishnan as Director.
Kailash Time - 3:30 PM -Appointment  of  Venkatraman
Building Kasturba Bharatdwaj as Director.
Gandhi Marg, - To approve and authorize to borrow|
Cannaught Place, New Delhi money in terms of Section 180(1) &
110001 Section18(1)(A) of the Act

Attendance of each director at the last annual general meeting:
Members Presence in the meeting

Kaushik Ramakrishnan --

Vikram Rathi Present
Aparna Bihany* --
Rakesh Kaul** NA
Gagan Aggarwal NA

*Resigned with effect from 04/04/2024.
** Appointed with effect from 04/04/2024.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

- DATE, TIME, AND VENUE

Day: Friday

Date: September 27, 2024

Time: 3:00 p.m.

Venue: The Company will conduct the meeting through VC / OAVM, relevant details of which have been
provided in the notice of AGM.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through its circulars Nos. 20/2020, 02/2021, 2/2022 and
09/2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, allowed companies to hold Annual General
Meeting through VC/OAVM up to September 30, 2024 and send financial statements (including Board’s
report, Auditors’ Report and other documents to be attached therewith) through email.

Accordingly, the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2024 along with the Notice of AGM are being
sent by email to the members and all other persons/entities entitled to receive the same. As stated
above, 8th AGM of the Company will be convened through VC or OAVM.

CLIX HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 Y

Public & Non Confidential Information



FINANCIAL YEAR

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1st April of a year and ends on 31st March of the
following year.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE

The Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company were listed on — National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051, up to 30th September, 2023. Thereafter the NCDs have been paid off. The Company
has paid Annual Listing Fees for FY 2022-23 to the exchange within the stipulated time.

STOCK CODE: Not Applicable

MARKET PRICE DATA- HIGH, LOW DURING EACH MONTH IN LAST
FINANCIAL YEAR: Not Applicable*

PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO BROAD-BASED INDICES SUCH AS BSE
SENSEX, CRISIL INDEX ETC: Not Applicable*

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchange and hence the details are
not applicable to the Company.

IN CASE THE SECURITIES ARE SUSPENDED FROM TRADING, THE
DIRECTORS REPORT SHALL EXPLAIN THE REASON THEREOF: Not Applicable

PLANT LOCATIONS: Not Applicable
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has in 2018 mandated

Dematerialization of shares for all Unlisted Public Companies. However, wholly owned subsidiaries
were exempt from the requirement.

The Company being wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited has its shares in
physical format only. The transfer and transmission request and dealing with the Shareholders is
handled in house by the Company.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 315T MARCH 2024

S. No. Name of the equity No. of equity | % age Nature of Ownership
shareholder Share held

1 Clix Capital Services Private Ltd. | 55,199,994** | 100 Holding Company

2 Vishal Jain 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
3 Vikram Rathi 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
4 Gagan Aggarwal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
5 Sanjay Rajpal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
6 Rakesh Kaul 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
7 Thimma Prakash Shetty 1 - Nominee of Holding Company

**200,000 shares were allotted on right basis, on 1st August, 2023.
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ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Shareholders/investors can correspond with the Company at the following address:

Registered Office:

Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal corporate Tower, Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi-
110008

Corporate Office Address:

6th Floor, Good Earth Business Bay-2, Sector 58, Gurugram, 122102

CREDIT RATINGS

The NCDs of the company were redeemed on 30th September, 2023 and as on date there are no NCDs
issued by the company. Thus, no credit rating has been obtained by the company post 30t September,
2023.

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE

Not Applicable during the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any
Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2023-24.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

During the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any Final Dividend on the
Equity Shares for FY 2023-24.

NOMINATION POLICY

Provision of Section 72 of the Act, read with rule 19(1) of the rules made thereunder extends
nomination facility to the individuals holding shares in the physical form. To help the legal heirs /
successors get the shares transmitted in their favor, shareholder(s)are requested to furnish the
particulars of their nomination in the prescribed Nomination Form.

UPDATE YOUR CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS/ BANK
MANDATE/ EMAIL ID

To ensure all communications/ monetary benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding shares
in physical form are requested to notify to the Company, change in their address / bank details / email
ID instantly by written request under the signatures of sole/ first joint holder.

QUOTE FOLIO NO. / DP ID NO.

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos., as the case may
be, in all correspondence with the Company.

Shareholders are also requested to quote their Email IDs, Contact/Fax numbers (landline/ cell phone)
for prompt reply to their correspondence.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its inception and thus, no amount was required
to be transferred, on account of unclaimed dividend, to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
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VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

The provisions related to the electronic voting are not applicable to the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Particulars

Details

Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with
the interests of listed entity at large.

There are no material related party
transactions during the year under review that
have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company

Details of non-compliance by the Company with
requirement of the Act, penalties, strictures
imposed on entity by Reserve Bank or any
statutory authority.

Nil

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism /
Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no
personnel have been denied access to the audit
committee.

In compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Act and other applicable regulations, the
Board of Directors has approved and adopted
the policy/mechanism on dealing with whistle
blowers. The Audit Committee reviews
Whistle Blower cases on quarterly basis.
During the year, no individual was denied
access to the Audit Committee for reporting
concerns, if any. The said policy/mechanism is
disclosed on the Company’s website, link for
which is Vigil Mechanism

Web link where policy for determining ‘Material’
Subsidiaries is disclosed.

The Company does not have any Subsidiary
Company. Thus, the requirement for the policy
of determining material subsidiaries is not
applicable.

Web link where policy on dealing with related party
transactions.

The Company has formulated a Policy on
Related Party Transactions which is also
available on Company's website, the link to
which is Fit and Proper Criteria for Directors

Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

Not Applicable

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested
by name and amount

Nil

Remuneration paid to the directors

Nil

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The total employee strength of the Company is
less than 10, thus, the provisions of Prevention
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
Act are not applicable.
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Disclosure of Non-compliance of any requirement| Nil
of corporate governance report of sub-paras, with
reasons thereof shall be disclosed.

The disclosures of the compliance with corporate | Duly complied with these regulations, upto 30t
governance requirements specified in regulation| September, 2023.

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2)
of regulation 46.

Instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or| Nil
debt securities issued.

DECLARATION SIGNED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
STATING THAT THE MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL HAVE AFFIRMED
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

There are no outstanding NCDs, thus, the provisions related to Code of Conduct are not applicable.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 6th September, 2024 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Kaushik Ramakrishnan
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 08303198
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ANNEXURE- II
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

NBFCs have become important constituents of India’s financial sector and have been recording
higher credit growth than scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) over the past few years. NBFCs
continue to leverage their superior understanding of regional dynamics and customised products
and services to expedite financial inclusion in India. Lower transaction costs, innovative products,
quick decision making, customer orientation and prompt service standards have typically
differentiated NBFCs from banks. Systemically important NBFCs have demonstrated agility,
innovation and frugality to provide formal financial services to millions of Indians. The growing
importance of NBFCs is reflected in the consistent rise of their credit as a proportion to GDP as well
as in relation to credit extended by SCBs to the NBFC sector.

INDIA’S HOUSING SECTOR

The Indian housing sector has been experiencing significant growth recently. Housing property
market across India has witnessed substantial growth in sales volumes. The top eight cities,
including Mumbai, Delhi-NCR, Bengaluru, Pune, and Hyderabad, have led this uptrend, propelling
the country’s residential real estate market to an 11-year high in sales volumes.

The strong economic fundamentals and stable socio-political conditions have contributed to the
buoyancy of India’s property market. Both the residential and office segments have recorded
decadal high numbers.

The housing finance market in India is evolving, with various players offering finance for
homebuyers. However, HFCs continue to dominate the market, and government initiatives and
incentives for affordable housing could further increase the demand for housing finance. Over the
years, the government has initiated various reforms that have led to a rise in incomes and standards
of living across the country. This, and other trends, such as a budding preference for nuclear families,
job mobility, etc., have resulted in an increase in housing, over and above the existing demand-
supply gap. In the home loan industry, Scheduled Commercial Banks and Housing Finance
Companies are the two major players that predominantly cater to the financing needs of the Indian
housing market. The demand for housing is not limited to urban areas, and there is a need for
affordable housing in rural regions as well. To address this demand-supply mismatch, there may be
special incentives for customers and builders in this segment. Government initiatives such as
‘Housing for All’ have also created demand for housing finance, especially in the low-income
segment.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Housing Finance market has lot of opportunities as both rural and semi-urban markets are
vastly underserved, there is massive housing shortage in the country. Further, the Government has
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its focus on affordable housing. Urbanisation, nuclearization and population growth is also giving
opportunities to the housing market.

The market also have its share of threats high inflation and rise in borrowing cost, industry or
economic competitive situations and the uncertain economic and political environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As a housing finance company, the Company faces financial, operating, market, regulatory and
compliance risks, hence, risk management is crucial. The Company has risk management and audit
framework in place to identify, assess, monitor and manage various types of internal and external
risks. In terms of the RBI NDS Company has a Risk Management Policy (RMC) to oversee the credit
risk management and ensure that the credit risks are properly identified and are properly
managed. The Company has a Board approved Risk Management policy which lays down the
guiding principles that help the management in complying with the statutory and regulatory
requirements/guidelines. The Company has an Asset and Liquidity Management Committee
(ALCO), which has the responsibility to manage the liquidity and interest rate risk for the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal Control System to ensure adherence to company's policies and
procedures, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to ensure that management
information and financial reporting is correct, reliable, and complete, to enable detection and
prevention of frauds and errors and to safeguard the company assets against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition, amongst others.

The internal control system of the Company is supplemented by extensive internal audits, regular
reviews by the management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure reliability of financial
and all other records to prepare financial data. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the
Internal Audit reports to get the effectiveness of the internal controls and compliance with the
regulatory bodies. Audit Committee also provides necessary oversight, gives recommendations,
and monitors implementation of such recommendations.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Mortgages is a long duration product and a high involvement buying decision for the customer -
which involves frequent and regular interactions. To enable a transparent, convenient, and hassle-
free customer experience, our dedicated team of customer service supported with transparent
operations and strong technology infrastructure, helps us to be responsive to our customers thereby
maintaining high standards of customer service. Digital communication, continuous customer
feedback and transparency remain key focus areas of the Company while engaging with customers.
The Company strives towards improving and strengthening its customer experience by
transitioning from query / complaint resolution to first time right delivery to customers.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company earned a Profit After Tax (PAT) of INR 22,676 (in
thousands) as compared to Profit after Tax of INR 29,559 (in thousands) in the previous financial
Year.
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The loan book of Company reduced from Rs. 1,158.55 (thousands) as on March 31, 2023 to Rs.
(thousands) as on March 31, 2024. It had Cash and Cash equivalent of Rs. 9,179 (in thousands) as
on March 31, 2024 (Rs. 8,667 thousands in previous year).

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company ensures that provisions of various Labour Laws, other employment regulations are
duly complied and met with. The Company has zero tolerance for sexual Harassment at work place
and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual Harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention,
prohibition, and redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder for the prevention and
redressal of complaints of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace.
For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 6th September, 2024 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Kaushik Ramakrishnan
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 08303198
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Annexure- 111

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Clix Housing Finance Private Limited)
CIN: U65999DL2016PLC308791

Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Govind Lal Sikka

Marg, Rajendra Place, 110008 New Delhi.

We report that:

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter referred as
‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Company’s Responsibilities

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the maintenance of secretarial
record under the Companies Act, 2013 and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards. Further the Company’s management and the Board of
Directors are also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate systems and process,
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to identify, monitor and ensure
compliances with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Auditor’s Responsibilities Statement

Our responsibility is only to examine and verify those compliances on a test basis and express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Limitations

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is
an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Secretarial Auditing
Standards as prescribed by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Further, we conducted the secretarial audit by examining the secretarial records including minutes,
documents, registers, other records and returns related to the applicable laws on the Company etc.
made available to us. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are the true and
correct. We have also relied upon representation given by the management of the Company for certain
areas which otherwise requires physical verification.

Basis of Opinion

We have followed the audit practices, secretarial auditing standards and processes as were applicable
and appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification in some cases were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. We also believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Report on Secretarial Records and Compliances made thereunder

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions
of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations(LODR), 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
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Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue And Listing Of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not
applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to issue and Share Transfer
Agent during the financial year under review.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2021; -
Not Applicable

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not
Applicable

vi. The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 rules,
regulations, master-directions and guidelines made issued thereunder as are specifically
applicable to Housing Finance Company on test basis and relying upon the representation
made by the Company and its officers for the system and mechanism framed by the Company
for compliances made thereunder and the Company is generally regular in fillings with
National Housing Bank (NHB).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: -

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India which were
generally complied.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE”).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Standards, Master Circular/ Directions and Guidelines etc. mentioned above except

Subject to the Compliance of regulation 57(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations (LODR), 2015, the NSE has imposed a

penalty of Rs. 1,000 plus applicable GST i.e. Rs. 1,180 on the Company vide its letter dated 15th

May, 2023.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice(s) have been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and,
in case of shorter notice, compliance as required under the Act has been made by the Company and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out with requisite majority
of the members of the Board or committees as the case may be. Further there is no case of views of the
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dissenting members as per the recordings in the minutes of the meetings of the Board or Committee(s)
thereof.

We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has the following specific events/actions
having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, standards & guidelines, if any, as may be referred to above:

During the period under review,

i. The Members of the Company in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) held on 19t July,

il.

ii.

2023 had altered the Capital Clause (Clause V) of Memorandum of Association of the Company.
Consequently, the Share Capital of the Company has been increased from Rs. 55,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Five crores only) divided into 5,50,00,000 (Five crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 55,20,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Five crores and Twenty Lakhs
only) divided into 5,52,00,000 (Five crore Fifty Two Lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each by the creation of additional 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each.

The Board of the Company in its meeting held on 26t July, 2023 has approved a right issue of
2,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, at nominal value aggregating to Rs. 20,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty lakhs only) to its holding Company namely “Clix Capital Services Private Limited” and the
same has been allotted by Board on 1st August, 2023.

The Board of the Company in their meeting held on 7th July, 2022 has in principally approved the
merger and the draft scheme of the amalgamation of the Company with its Holding Company i.e.
Clix Capital Services Private Limited. Consequently, an application seeking “No Objection” from
‘National Housing Bank’ (NHB) has been filed by the Company. Further the Company has also
issued notices (CAA-9) to the regulators pursuant to section 233 of the Act read with rule 25(1)
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

However no further actions have been taken by the Company in this regard till the closure of the
financial year.

For VKC & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)
Unique Code: P2018DE077000

CS Ishan Khanna

Partner

ACS No. A53517

CP No. 24258

UDIN: A053517F000449572

Peer Review Certificate: 1955/2022

Date: 27th May, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Clix Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Clix Housing Finance Limited {"the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements including a summary of
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as “Ind
AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS”) prescribed under saction
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit/loss (including other comprehensive
income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs} specified under section 143{10)
of the Act. Our respensibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. Ve are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the tnd AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements. '

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the Ind AS finaricial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materfally inconsistant with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibllities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind A$ Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selaction and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the ind AS financial statements, Board of Directors is respansiole for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going cancern and using
the going concern basis of accounting uniess Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company
cr to cease operaticns, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud of error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.




Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of this Ind AS financlal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing cur opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Com pany to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with g statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicahle, related
safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

{1) As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”) issued by the Central

2

—

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in YAnnexure 1”, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure 2";

8. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
reguirements of section 197(16) of the Act, a5 amended:

Inour opinion and to the best of aur information and accarding to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the manageria! remuneratiaon
is not applicable.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(1) The Company did not have any long-term contracts mcludlng derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses. ;




(iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Campany;

(iv)

(a} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have

been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whethar, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have

(c}

been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e}, as provided under (a) ard (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

(v} The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.




{vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso
to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting
under 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as
per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024,

For DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No,

o

Manish Kankani
Partner o
Membership No. 158020
UDIN: 24158020BKAKGK3640
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 27, 2024
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited {“the
Company”) on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information, explanations
and written representation given to us by the management and the books of aceount and other
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

{1 .
(a) (A) The Company did not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and accordingly, reporting
under clause {i){a)(A) and (i){b)of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(c) The title deeds of the immovable properties which are “held for sale” (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
lessee) disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are not held in the name of the Company.
Details of such assets are given helow:

Description | Gross Held . in the | Whether Perfod held | Reason for not belng held in
of property | carrying | name of promoter, _ name of Company

value {in Rs director or o

thousands) their

' relative or

employee
Buildings 19,725* | Multiple No 0-2 year The Company has
(Residential borrowers [15 repossessed properties
Flats) ' Nos] : "~ | under SARFEASI Act, 2002
[15 Nos) ' = taken as collateral against
[ loans given to customers.

*Gross Carrying Value — Cost to Seil = Net Carrying Valué .(19,;725‘--—:6,540 =13,185)

(d) The Company did not have any Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use
assats) during the year, hence question of revaluation does not arise. The Company has
not revalued its Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause

~(iMd) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. ' :

(e] Mo proceedin'gs have heen initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
2024 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
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{1i)
{a) The Company isin the business of non-banking financial services consequently, does not hold
any inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause {ii){a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

(k) (b} The Company has not abtained any sanctioned working capital limit at any point of time
during the year, from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of current
assets, Therefore, reporting under clause (iil{b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iit)
{a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans and therefore, reporting under clause {iii)(a)
and {e) of paragraph 3 of the Qrder are not applicable.

{b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided by the
Company during the year are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, we report
that the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulatec and
the repayments/receipts of principal and Interest are regular except for certain instances as
below: (Rs. in thousands)

Duts'tanding of overdue loans as on March 31, 2024

Particulars ~ Days Past Due Principal & Interest No. of Cases
Overdue
1-30 30,566 22
31-90 76,346 33
More than 90 (Excluding Interest) 55,800 26
Total 1,62,712 _ 81

(d} tn respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, the details of amount
which is averdue for more than ninety days is as below:

No. of Principal Overdue Remarks
Cases {Rs. in thousands) :
26 55,800 Necessary steps have been taken by the
Company for recovery of the principal.

{e) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The provisions of Section 185 are not applicable to the Company as the Company has not
provided any loans to Directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested.
Further, the provisions of Section 186 are not applicakle to the Company being a Housing
Finance Company, as it is engaged in the husiness of providing loans.




(vi)

(vif}

(viif}

(ix)

{x)

{a

it

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 {as amended). Accordingly,
reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

The Central Government has not prascribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed
there under.

The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other material statutory dues applicable to it.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) There are no dues with respect to GST, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

{e)

tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income durlng the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not heen declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (ix}{c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds have
been raised on short-term basis.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company
tdoes not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly reporting under clause
(ix)(e) and {ix){f) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicakle.

(a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer/further public offer {incfuding

debt instruments) during the year. Therefore reportlng under clause (x){a} of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not appllcable ; :




{xi)

(xii)

(xitl)

[xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b)

(a)

(b}

{c}

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b}

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore,
reporting under clause {x)(b) of paragraph 3 cof the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices In India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

No report under section 143{12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by
the auditers of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upto
the date of this report.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
Is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause {xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

All transactions entered intoc by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considerad the Internal Audit Report of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directars or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanaticns provided to us and based on the overall operations
of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain registration under saction 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act.

The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the National Housing Bank
(NHB} under sectioh 29A of the National Housing Bank Act 1987, for conducting Housing
Finance activities.




(xvii)

{xviii)

{xix)

{xx)

{c)

The Company is not & Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Crder is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financia! assats
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come te our
attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this
audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting
under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants

|<’

|
Ma ni‘z Kankani  \
Partner S ACCOL 2
Membership No.: 158020
UDIN: 24158020BKAKGK3640
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 27, 2024




ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2{i) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited on the Ind
AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Repart on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financlal Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Clix Housing
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsihility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financlal
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit

< of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors' Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in Il material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial cantrols with reference to financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Cantrols with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financlal Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due ta error or fraud may occur and not be datected. Also, projections of any avaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Dpinion

In our opinion, to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For CMKH & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.11 mﬁ

Gk R

Manish Kankani
Partner '

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
{All amounit in INRithousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at Asat
Notes.
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Financlal assats
Cash and cash equlvalents 5A 8179 8,667
Bank balance other than ahowe 13 17,280 15,372
Loans G 615,743 1,056,735
Investments 7 15,987 16,190
Other financlaf assets 9 105,295 213422
Man- financal assets
Current tax assets (net) 10,106 5,248
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 9,627 16,244
Gther Intangible assats 8 10,185 11,664
Other non- financial assets 10 ’ 14,132 14,995
Assets held for sale 13,185 35,891
Tatal assets 821,719 1,394,429
LIABILI D EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financlal Rakllities
Payakilas . 11
Trade Payabies .
a) Total outstanding dues of micro anterprises and smali 1,341 L1
enterprises
b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 22,086 14,651
enterprises and small enterprises '
Babt Sscurities . 12 - 406,253
Borrowings (cther than Debt Securities) 13 175,971 303,713
Other financial kabilitiss 14 22,127 39,124
Provislons i 15 1,115 538
Othar non-financial LlathI“ES 18 797 1,211
Total Habilites 223 441 821 485
Equity
Equity share capitaf 17 552,000 550,000
Cther equity 13 46,278 22,944
Total Equity 598,278 572944
Total liabilites and Equity 821,719 1,394,425
Material accounting poligies . 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements
Asg par our report of even date
For DMKH & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ciix Housing Finance Limitad

ICAI Firm Reglstration No. 1263w

Ty jo7

Manish Kankani Rakesh Kaul T K Ramakrishnan
Bartnar \ Director Director
Mernbarship No.: 158020 § DIN: 03386665 : DiIN: 08303198
Flace: Mumbai o e Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbaj
Date: 27 May 2024 Date 27 WMay 2024 ?ate 27 May 2024
Amltmr Vlnm;
Chief Finonofal Officer Company Seeretary

fembership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024




Clix Houslng Finance Limitet
Statement of Profit and toss for the period anding 31 March 2024
{Alf amount in iMR thousands, except for share data unless stated ctherwlse)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from ogerations
Interest Income 19 102,638 162,845
Fees and commission Income 20 ) 74168 12,166
Net gain on falr value changes 21 3,450 8,937
Net gain an derecognition of financlal Instruments under
amortised cost category 10,147 95,769
Total revenua from operations 123,353 270,717
Qther Incomea 22 1,753 - 4,866
Tatal Income 125,106 275,583
Expenses
Finance Costs - 23 53,003 130,339
Faes and commission expense 24 1,582 4,343
Impairment on financial instruments 25 12,367 71,044
Ermployee Benefits Expense 26 10,506 11,822
Ambrtizatlon g 1,478 1,479
© Otherexpensas _ 27 : 15,974 12,439
Total Expenses ) 85,911 238 966
Profit before tax 29,195 38,617
Tax Expense! ' 28
{1} Current tax - 23,375
{2) Current tax for eardier years {128) -
{3} Deferred tax charge / {credit) 5647 {16,317}
Frofit for the year 22,675 29,550
Cthar Comprehensive Incoms
A. Ivems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuremants of definad banafit liahillty ’ 119) 252
Intome Tax Effect 20 {731
B. ltams that will be reclassified to proflt or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income , net of Incoms tax {88) 219
Total Comprehensive income for the year 23,587 29,775
Earnings perequity share of Rs. 10/~ each 29
Basle {INR) 0,41 0.54
Diluted [INR}Y 0.41° 0.54
Nominal value per share (INR) 10,00 10.00
Materia) accounting pollcies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For BMKH & Co. : ' Por and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clit Housing Finance Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886W gt ’

\

i -
Manish Kankank Rakesh Kaul ) ' 1t Ramakrishnan
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 158020 DIM: 03386665 DIN: 08303198
Flaca: Wumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbal

Date; 27 May 2024 Date: 27 May 2024

Ard—

Amit Kumar Jain
Chigf Financial Gfficer

Date: 27 May 2024

i

Company Secrelony
Mernhership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 20124




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 Maech 2024

(AN amount in INR thousends, except for shore data unless stated otherwiss)

For DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICA} Firm Registration Mo, 116586W

Manish Kankani
Farther
Bembkership No.: 158020

Place: Mumbai
Cate: 27 May 2024

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 Mearch 2023
Cash fow from operating activities
Profit before tax 29,1495 36,617
Adusted for:
Met gain on falr value changes 13,450 {8,937}
Share hased payment 749 791
Provision for employae benefit expanses [181) 298
Impairment on financial instruments 12,3687 71,044
Amortization 1478 1,478
Imterest on Income-tax refund [217) 193}
Interest incoms on fixed deposits [961) {2611}
Dperating profit before werking capital changes 28,981 98 /K83
Adjusted far net changes In working copltaf
Decrease in financizl assets and other assets 564,321 832,598
Decrease In financial liabillties and other labilities {58,988) {34,012}
Taxes (paid)frefund receivad {net) {4,512] 128,122}
Met Cush generated from operwting acthvities 535,802 868,052
Cash flows from investing activities
Movernent In mutual funds {net) 2,653 153,380
Purchase of Pass through certificates - 15,315)
Inwestment in fixed deposits more than 90 days maturity {1,908) {13,840)
Intarest income on fixed depasits G961 2511
Net Cush generated from investing uctivities 1,705 136,536
Cash Rows frem financing activities )
Praceeds from issuance of equity share capttal 2,000 -
Praceeds from Inter Corporate Loan 205,940 -
Repayritent of Inter Corporate Loan (205,940 {1,100,000)
Repayment of term loan - {561,857}
Movernent in on Convertible Debentures [406,253) 2,506
Procerds from Borrowing against Securitlsed Portfolio 28,412 381,483
Repayment of Borrowing against Securitised Portfolie {161,155) 72,7704
Net Casht generated from/fused in) fnancing activities [536,945) {1,350,638)
Net (decreass) f incraasa in cash and cash agulvalents 512 (344, 750)
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,667 353,417
Cash and cash aquivalants at tha end of the year 9,179 8,667
Hotas :
Camponents of cash and cask equivalents balance include:
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts 9,179 7,604
Fived deposits with maturty of less than 3 months - 1,063
€ash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,179 B,/567

Fovand on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
Clix Housing ¥inance Limited

Rakesh Kzul
Director
DIN: 03336665

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2029

-
&/7
K Ramakrishnan

Director
DIN: 02303198

Place: Mumbal
Diate: 27 May 2024

<

ni R Kalra
Company Secretary
Wembership Mo: 417923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at § April 2023 Changas In Eguity | Restated balance as| Changes in equity | Balance as st 31 March 2024
Share Capital due at 1 April 2023 share capital
to prior perled during the
errors current year
550,000 - - 2,000 552,000
Balance as at 1 April 2022 Changes In Equity |Restated balance as| Changes in equity| Balance as at 31 March 2023
Shara Capitat due at 1 April 2022 share capital :
to prior pariod during the
errors currant year
550,000 - - - 550,000
b. Other Equity
Particulars Raserves and surplus Qther Tatal
Share based Statutory reserve | Retalned earning | Comprahansive
payment resarve Income
Balance at 1st April 2023 1,492 17,825 1,149 2475 22,944
Profit/{Loss) for the year - - 22,676 - 22,676
Remeasurements of defined benefit Hability - - - (89} (B9)
ESQOP cost for the year 1,250 - - - 1,250
Share Based Payments {501} - - - {501)
Transfer out of Reserves - 4,517 {4,517) . -
Balance at 31st March 2024 ° 2,241 22,342 19,308 2,387 46,278
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other Total
Share basad Statutery reserve | Retained eaming | Comprehgnsive -
paymaent raserve ) Incame
Balancs at 1st April 2022 701 11,869 {22,454} 2,257 {7,627)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 28,558 - 28,559
Remeasurements of defined benefit ability - - - 215 219
ESOF cost for the year 791 - - - 791
Transfer out of Reserves - 5,956 {5,956} - -
Balance at 315t March 2023 1,432 17,825 1,149 2,476 22,944
The acrampanying notas are an Integral part of the financial statemants
As per our report of even date
For DMKH & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Limited N

[CAl Firm Registration No. 116586y,

ot

Manish Kankani
Partner %
Membership No,: 158020

Place: Mumbai
Date; 27 May 2024

Rakesh Kaul
Director
{IN: 03386665

Placa: Gurugram

Date: 27 May 2024

Arr—

Amit Kumar jain

Chief Financial Offfcer

Place: Gurugram

Date: 27 May 2024

/
o e

K Ramakrishnan
Director
DIN: 08303198

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2022

Vi
i R Kalra

Company Secretory
Membership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limitad
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All 2moLint In INR thousands, excent for share data unless stated otharwlse}

Corporate Information

Cllx Housing Finance Limlted |s a public imited company (w.e.f 20 September 2020) domiciled in Iridia and incorporated on 2 December 2016 under the
provisions of Companias Act, 2013 with CIN-UE5S59DL2016PLC308?91. The Company 1s a whally owned subsidiary of Clix Capltal Services Private Limited, The
Company s classifled under middle layer as per scale based framewaork applicable from @1 Octobier 2022, The Caompany has received certificatian of registration
dated 18 August 2017 from Matlonal Houslng Bank {'NHB') with reglstration ho.08.0157.17. The Company is primasily engaged In lending actlvities. The
Company does not accept depasits from the public. The Company’s registered office 15 at Aggarwal Corporate Tower, Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Govind Lal Stkka
Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi- 120008, India.

During the financlal year ended 31 March 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved a Scheme of Amalgamation {“the Scheme") for
Amalgamation with its Holding Company , Clix Capital Services Private Limited. The Company appreached all the stakeholders Including Raserve Bank of Indla
{RBI} for No ohjection for the same. RBI had vide Its letter dated October 27, 2022 and January 31, 2023 glvan its no objection for the Holding Company & CHFL,
respectively. In the interim both the enmpanles are re-evaluating the optlon of going ahead with the Scheme,

{1} Basls of praparation of financial statements .

The standalone finandial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A4S} as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act) and presented in the format
prescribed In the Division Il to Schedule to the Companies Act, 2013 along with other relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction - Non-Banking
Fimancial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021 read with Master Diraction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial
Company —Scate Based Regulation) Directlons, 2023,

These financial staterments were authorlzed for lssue by the Company's Board of Rirectors on May 27, 2024, The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has consldered a wide range of
Information relating to present and future condtions, including future projections of profitabllity, cash flows snd capital resources.

[li} Basis of maasurament

The financlal statements have heen prepered on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and liabilitias designated at falr value through profit or loss
{FYTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The financial statemants are presented in Indian Rupees (INR} and all values are raunded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indlcated.

{ill) Prasantation of financlal statement

The Company presentsits balance sheet In ordar of Nguidity. Financlal assets and financlal liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet, They are
only offset and reported net when the Company has an unconditional iegally enforceable right to offset the recogrilsed amounts without belng contingent on a
future event, and the parties also Intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

&, The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/for Its counterparties.

The Company prepares and presents its Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by
Dlvislon 11l of Schedule Il to the Act. The Staternent of Cash Flows has been prepared and presentad as per the raquirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash
Flows'.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Materlal accounting palicies

The Company adopted the amendment to the Ind A3-1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' as notified by the MCA vide notificatian dated March 31, 2023
relating to ‘Distlosure of Accounting Polfcy Infermation’ from April 01, 2023, Although the amencdments did not result In any changes In the accounting policies
themselves, they Impacted the accounting policy Informatlon disclosed in the financlal statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of 'materfal' rather than “signlficant’ accounting policles. The amendrents alse provide guidance on applications of
matarlality.disciosures of accounting policles, assisting entries to provide usaful entry, speciflc accounting policy information that user nead to understand
other information to this financial statements,

3.1 Usa of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind A3 requires the management to malke Judgments, astimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and fabilitles and the disclesure of contingent lizbllities, at the end of the reporting period. Although
these estimates ara based on the managament's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result In the outcories requiting a material adjustment ta the cartving amounts of assets or Habllitles in future periods. Changeas In estimates are reflected inthe
financial statements in the period In which ¢hanges are made and, If materlal, their effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

3.1.1 Business madel assassment

Claceification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely paymeants of principal and Itterest and the business model test. The
Company determines the business madel at a level that reflects how Compeny's financial assets are managed together ta achleve a partloular buslness
objective, This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the perfermance of the assets It evaluated and measured
Including how these are managed and compensated to the managers of the assets. The Cornpany monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprahensive Incorme that are derecognised prior to thelr maturity to understand the reason for thelr disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the ohjective of the husiness for which the asset was held.

Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
sppropsiate and 1f it Is nat appropriate whether there has heen a change in business mode! and so a prospective change ta the classification of those assets.

3.1.2 Falr value of financial instruments . '

. The fair value of financial instrurnents s the price that would be raceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a kability tn 2n orderly transaction In the principal
{or most acvantageous) market at the measurement date under currant market conditlons {i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financlal assets and financial Nabilitles recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be detivad from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models, The inputs to
these maodals are taken from ohservable markets where possible, but where this Is not feasible, estimation is required In estahlishing falr values. Judgements
and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to ftems such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments,
corralation and volatifity. :

3.1.3 Effective [nterest Rate (EIR) method

The company's EIR methodlology, recognises interast Income / expense using a rate of return that represents the est estimate of a constant rate of return over
the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentiaily diffarent interest rates at various stages and ather chararterlstics of
the product life cycle (Including prepayments and penaity interest and charges).

This estiration, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected betaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected chanpes to
India's base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the Instrument,




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Allamount in INR thousands, except for shara data unless stated otherwise)

3.1.4 Impairmant loss on finansial asset

The measuremant of impairmeant losses acrass all sategorles of financial 2ssets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining Impairment losses and the assessment of a significant Increase in credit risk. Thase estimates are
driven by a number of factars, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The company’s ECL calculations are outputs of cormplex models with a number of underlylng assumptions ragarding the choice of variakle inputs and their
interdependencies. Elernents of the ECL madels that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

l. The Campany’'s internal model, which assigns probability of default {PD}.

Il. The Company's criterla far assessing if there has been a significant increasa in credit rislk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a
LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment '

Il The segmentation of financlal assets when their ECL is assessed on a tollactive bagls

¥, Development of ECL medels, Including the various formulas and the cholce of inputs

V. Determination of assoclations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic Inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect

on PDs, Exposure at Default (EAD] and Loss glven default {LGD)
V1. Selection of forward-looklng macroecanomic scenarlos and thelr proabahility welghtings, to derlve the economic inputs into the ECL madels
It has been tha Company’s policy to regularly review [ts models In the context of actual luss experience and acjust when necessary.

3.1.5 Deflned emiployee banafit assets and liabilitias

The cost of the defined benefit graiulty plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity abligation are determined using
actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments In the future. Thase Include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and rnoertality rates. Due to the complexitles Involved In the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined henefit obligation is highly sensitive to ehanges in these assumptions, All assurmptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.1.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-hased payment transactions requires determinatian of the most apprapriate valuation madel, which is dependent an the terms
and conditiens of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate Inputs to the valuation model inctuding the expected iife of the
share option, volatllity and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

8.1.7 Provisions and other contingent hiabilities
The Company operates in a regulatory and lagal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation rtskinherent to Its operations. As 3 result, it
Is involved in various litigatlon, athitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the oredinary course of the Company's business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic beneflts In relation to a specific case and considers such cutflows to be probahle, the
Company records a provision agatnst the case, Where the probability of outflow |s congidered to be remote, or probable, buta reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent Nability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertalnty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes Into account a nutmber of factors including legal
advice, the stage of the matter and historlcal evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude an these estimates.




Clix Housing Finance Limlted
Notes to Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount tn INR thousands, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

3.1.8 Leases

The Cormpany evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identlfication of a leasa requires significant judgment.
The Company uses significant Judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals} and the applicable discount rate. The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both pericds covered by an aption to extend the lease If the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that optlon; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease If the Company is reasenably certaln not to exercise that
option. In assessing whether the Company is reasanably certaln to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exerclse an option to terminate a lease, It
considers all relevant facts and clrcumstances that create an economic Incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term If there s a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is
generally based on the incremantal borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a partfollo of leazes with sirnilar characteristics.

3.2 Cashand cash equivalents .
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, tash balances in bank, and highly liquid investments with maturity perlod of thrae months or less
from the date of Investment,

3.3 Revenue recognition

a) Interast and simHar incoms

Interest income, for afl financlal instruments messured elther at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, is
recorded using the effective interast rate (EIR}, EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receints over the expected life
of tha finanelal instrument ar & sharter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financlal asset. The caleulation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial Instrument (for example, prepayment options] and Includes any fees or incremetal costs that are directly attributable and
are an Integral part of the EIR, but nat future eredit losses,

b} Fareclosura charges and othar fees . :
Foreclosure charges and other fees which include cheque hounce charges, penal fee, legal charges and prepayment charges atc. ara recognised as Income when

there is certainty regarding the receit of payment.

¢} Dividend income

Dividend incomea 1s recognized when the Company's right to recelve the payment is established, It 14 probable that the economic benefits assoclated with the
dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, Thisis generally when shareholders approve the dividend,

d} Income on derecognlzed (Assigned) loans

Galns arlsing out of direct assignment transactions camprises of the difference between interest on the loan portfolia and the applicable rate at which the
direct asslgnmant Is entered into wlth the assignee, also known as the right of excess Interest spread {EIS). The future EIS basls the scheduled cash flow on
execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered Inte with the assignee Is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss.

e} Other Income
Other Income reprasents income earned from the activities inclderital to the business and is recognlzed whan the right to recelve tha income is established a5

per the terms of the contract

3.4 Forgign currency

The Campany’s financial staterents are presented in Indian Rupees {|NR) which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencles are initially recorded by the Company at thefr respective functlonal currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Income and expenses in forelpn currencies are inftially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates prevalling on the date of the
transaction.

Foreign currency denominated menetary assets and liahilities are translated at the functional curreney spot rates of exchange at the reporting date and
exchange gains and |osses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit and lass.

Non-monetary tems that are measured in terens of historical cost In a foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initlal
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at falr value In a forsign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The galn or loss arising on translation of non-monetary ltems measured at fair vaive is treated in line with the recognition of tha gain or loss an the
change in falr value of the item {l.2., translation differences on tems whose falr value gain ar loss is recognized in OC or profit ar loss are afso recognized In OC
or profit or loss. respectivelvi. .




Clix Heusing Finance Limited
Notes to Flnancial Statements for the year anded 31 March 2024
{all amount 1 INR thousantls, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.5 Property, plant and equigmeant {PPE} and intangible assats

PPE

PPE are stated at cost {Including incidentsl expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to Its working condition for Its Intended use} less accumulated
depreciation and Impairment losses, if any, Cast comprises the purchase price and any atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPEis capitalized only when It s probable that future economic benefits assoclated with these will flow ta the
Company and the eost of ltem can be measured rellably, Other repairs and rnalntenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part inftially recognised is derecognised upon disposal ar when no future economic beneflts are
expected from Its use or disposal, Any gain or 1055 arising on de-racognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the statement of profit and lnss when the assat |s derecognised.

Intangible fixed assets .
The Company's Intangibla assets malnly Include the value of computer software. An intanglble asset Is recagnised anly when its cost can be measured reliably
and It s probable that the expected future ecanomic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company. )

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Inftlal recognition at cast. Following inltlal recognition, intangible assets are carrled at cost less any
accurmuiated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.6 Depreciation and amortization
Deprediation

Dwred assets

{a) Leasehald improvements are amortised over the lease term as stated in the lease agreement or usaful life of the asset whichever i3 lower,

{b} Intangtble assats conslsting of computer software are depreciated on a stralght-line hasis over a period of 5 years fromthe date of ready to use,

{t} Depreciation an other owned flxed assets Is provided on straight Bine method at the rates, computed based on estimated useful life of those assets as
prescribed under Schedule Il 4o the Companies Act, 2013, Land is not depreciated,

Tha estimated useful lives are, as follows:

- Computers - 3 years
- Office equipmant - B years
- Furniture and fixtures o - 10years
- Cornputer softwares* - 10 years

* The usefui lives for Computer Software as per the prescribed Schedule |l rates under Part C of the Companles Act is 6 years, However, the Company is taking
usefut life of 10 years for Computer Saftware basis the Management's internal assessment of estimate of useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depraciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, If appropriate
3.7 tpairment of nanfinancial assets

The carrying amount of assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date If there is any indication of impalrment based on Internal/external factors. An
Impalrment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount, The recoverahle amount is the greater of the
assets, net selllng price and value In use. |n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using @ pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current marlet assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In datermining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, If avallzble. If no such transactions can be identified, an apprapriate valuation model s used.

After Imgalrmant, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful iife,
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3.8 Provislons

Provisions are recogrised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or tonstructive) as a result of a past event, it s probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic henefits will be raquirad to sattle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obllgation.

Provisions {excluding retirement henefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate raquired to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pra-tax rate that reflects,
when apprapriate, the Tisks specific to the liabtlity. When discounilng is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time |5 recognised as
a finance cost.

3.9 Cantingent liabilities and assets

The Company does not recoghize a contingernt liabllity but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent liabiftty ts disclosed In the case of:

- & present obligation arising from past events, whert It |5 not probable that an autflow of resources embodying economic benafits will he regulred to settle the
obligation : :

- A present obligation arlsing from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

- A possible obligation arising from past events, unlass the probability of outflow of resolrces Is remote

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contlgent assets are not recognized. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an Inflow of econamic benefits is probable,

3.10 Retirement and ather employes banefits
The Company's obligation towards varlous employee benefits has heen recognised as follows:

Shiart-term employee beneflts
Al employee henefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits, Benefits such as salaries,
wages and bonus etc., are recoghised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related servica.

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund is a defined contributlon plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Reglonal provident fund commissioner and is
charged to Statament of Profit and Loss.

Dafined benefit plan
The Campany pays gratulty to employees who retire or restgn after a minimum perlod of five years of continuous service. The Company has choesen net to
fund the gratuity labllitles of the plan but Instead carry & provision based on actuarial valuation in fts boaks of accoumts,

Remeasurements arlsing from defined benefit plans comprises of actuzrlal gatns and Insses on benefit obligations. The Campany recognizes these items of
remeasurements immediately in other comprehensive Incorne and all the other expenses related ta defined benefit plans as employee henefit expensas In their
_profit and loss account. ' '

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when & plan s curtalfed ar settlernent occurs, the portion’ of the changed beneflt related to past service by
employees, or the gain ar loss on curtailment or settigment, is recognized immediately In the profit or loss account when the plan amendment or whan a
curtailment ar settlement occurs.

Other long-term hanafits — Compensated absences
Entitlaments to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. Balance leaves, if any can ba encashed at the time of retlrementy termination of
employment. The Company determinas the liability for such accumulated feave entitlements on the basts of actuarial valuatlon as at the vear end.

The liability in respect of all deflned benefit plans and other lang term benafits is accruet! In the books of acceunt on the basis of actuarial valuation carrled out
by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measurad at the present value of astimated future cash flows.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gaing and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined henefit
fiablity and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liahility), are recognised immediately In the balance
sheat with a corresponding debit or credit to retatned earnings through OC! In the perlod in which they ocour. Remeasurements are not reclassifled to profit or
loss in subsetuent periods.
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3.11 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expacted to be recoverad from or pald to the taxation authorities in accordance with
Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Risclesure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amaount are
those that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to [tems recognisad outside profit or loss is recognised outslde profit or loss {either in other camprehenslve income or In equity).
Current tax items are recognised 1n correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or directly in equity. :

Deferred tax

Deferrad tax 15 provided using the liablitty method on temporery differences between the tax hases of assets and liahilltles and thelr carrying amounts for
financial reparting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferrad tax assets are recognlsed for all deductible termporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable proft will be available agalnst which the deductible vemporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax cradits and unused tax lasses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent
taxabla profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the deferrad tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets ave re-gssessed at gach reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that It has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilitles are measured at the tax rates that are expacted ta apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabllity is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enscted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recopnised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or loss {either In othercomprehensive Income or kn equity).
peferred ax tems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC ar directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities are offset if a tegally enforczable right exists to set off current tax assets agalnst current tax liakillties and the

deferred taxes ralate to tha same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

4,12 Earning per share

Baslc earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehalders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equily shares sre treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
parkicipate in dividands relative to a fully pald equity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the perfod are adusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

3.13 Share hased payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the falr value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments Is expenser on a stralght line basls over the vesting perlod, based on
the Company's estimate of equity Instruments that will eventually vest, with a correspanding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Company revises its estimatz of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, 1s racognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments
Reserve, .

The dilutive effect of outstanding options Is refiected as additlonal share dilution in the computatton of diluted earnings per shars.
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3.14 Financial instruments

A financlal Instrurent 1s any contract that gives rise to 2 flnancial asset of one antity and afinancial labllity or eguity instrument of angther entity.

3.14.1 Financlal Assets

3.14.1.1 Initlal racognition and measuremsant )
Financlal assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are Inltially recognised on the trade date, i.a., the date that the Company hacomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The
classification of finandial instruments at initial recognition depends on thelr purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acqulring them,
All financial assets are recognised initfally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at falr value thratgh profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.14.1.2 Classificatlon and Subsatuent measurement

For purposes of subsaquent measurement, financial assets are classifled in four categorias:
+  DabtInstruments at amortised cost
Dabt Instriuments and equity instruments at falr value through profit or lass (FYTPL)
- Dabtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOC!
Equity instrument measurad at falr value through other comprehensive income {FVTOLCH)

3.14.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amoriised cost if both the following conditions are met:

1. The asset s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractuaf cash flows, and

Il Cantractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest {SPPI) on the principal amount
outstandine, .

Business model: The business modal reflects how the Cormpany manages the assets In order to generate cash flows, That (s, where the Company's objective is
solely ta collect the contractuzai cash flows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Company's objective is to collect hoth the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the same iz measured at fair value thraugh other comprehensive Income [FVTOCI. If
nefther of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classifled as part of “other” business model and
measured at FVTPL.

$PPL: Where the business madel is to hold assets to collect and earn contractual cash flows {2, measured at amortized cost), the Company assesses whather
the flnanclal instrurents’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Corpany considars
whether the contractual cash flows are consistant with a bagic lending arrangement [.e. interagt includes only consideration for the time value of maney, credit
risk, athar hasic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the coniractual terms introtluce expasure to risk or
volatility that are Inconsistent with a basic lending arrangament, the related financial asset is classifled and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
amortized cost, as mentioned above, is computed using the effectlve Interest rate mathod,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interast rate (EIR) mathod less Impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on acquisition and fess or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Tha EIR
amortisation Is includad in interest income in the staternert of profit or lass. The losses arising from impalrment are recognised in the staterment of profitand
loss.

- 3.12.1.4 Debt instruments at FYOCI
A'dabt Instrument’ is classiflad as at the FVTOCH if both of the following criteria are met:

i. The objective of the business medel |s achleved both by collecting contractual cash flows and salling the financlal assets,
il. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments Included withln the FYTOC! rategory are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 3t fair value, Falr value movements are
recognized In the other comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes Interest Income, Impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange galn of loss in the PAL. On terecognitlon of the asset, cumulative galn or loss previously recogaised in OCI 15 reclassifled from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whiist holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as Interest income ustng the EIR mathod,
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3,14.1.5 Debt instrument at FYTRL

FYTPL is a residual category for debt Instruments. Any debt Instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorlzation as ot amortized
€05t or as FYTOC, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addltion, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwlse meets amortizad cost or FYTOCE criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
elaction it allowed only If doing so reduces or eliminates & measurement or recognliion inconststency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’]. Debt Instruments
included within the FYTPL category are measurad 2t falr valug with all changes recognized n the P&L.

3.14.1.6 Equity Investments )
All equity invastiments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity Instruments which are held for trading classified as at FyTPL. For all other equity

instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the falr value. The
Company makes such election on an Instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification 1s made on Inftial recognitlon and is lrrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTQCI, then all fair value changes on the instrunient, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OC There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even an sale of Investment. However, tha campany may transfar the
curmnulative galn or loss within eoulty.,

Equity instrumants included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the PAL.

3.14.2 Financial Lizbilities
3.14.2.1 Initiaf recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classifled and measured at armortised cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FYTPL if it is tlassified as held-for trading or it]s
dasignated a5 such on initfal recognition. Al financkal liabillties are recognised initlally at fair value and, in the case of loans and herrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The cempany's financial llabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financiat mstruments,

3,14.2.2 Classification and Subsequent measurament - Financial liabilities at falr valugz through profit or loss

Financtal liabllitles at fair value through profit or loss include financial llabllitles held for trading and financial liabilltles designated upon initlal
recognttion as at falr value through profit or loss. Financial labilities are classified &5 held for trading Hf they are Inecurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This catepory alko includes dertvative financlal instruments enterad into hy the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
dasignated as effective hedging instruments.

Galns or Josses on liabilities held for tradiné are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabliities deslgnated upon inltlal recognition at fair value through profit ar loss are designated as such at the Initfal date of recomnition, and only if
the criteria In Ind A% 109 are satisfiad. For llabilitles designated as FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized
in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subssquently transferred to PEL. However, the company ray transfer the cumulative galn or loss within equity. All other
changes in falr valua of such llabllity are recognised In the staternent of profit and loss.

3.14,2.3 Loans and borrowings
After nitial recognition, interest-beartng loans and borrowlngs are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the EIR method, Gatns and losses are
recognised in prafit or loss when the liabilitias are derecognised as well as through the EiR amortisation process.

Amartised cost is calculated by taking Inte account any discount or pramium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The EIR
amortisation Iz included as finance costs In the statement of profit and loss, This category generally applies to borrowtngs.
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3.14.3 Reclassification of financial assets and labllitles

The company doesnt reclassify its financial assets subsequent to thelr Inltial rerognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the
cormpany ‘acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line, Financlal liabilities are never reclassified.

3144 De recognition of financial assets and llabilities
3.14.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets dus to substantlal modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial assat, such as a loan to a customer, when the modification of terms and conditlons have been renegotiated to the extent
that, substantially, [t becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or toss, to the extent that an Impairment loss has not already
been recorded. If the modiflication does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result In derecognition. Based on the
change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or |oss, to the extent that an impairment lass has not already been
racorded.

3.14.4.2 Deracognition of financial assets other than due to substantial madification

A financial asset [or, where applicable, 2 part of a financizl asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is derecognised when the rights to recelve cash
Fiows from the financial asset have expired. The Company alsa derecognlses the financlal asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
aualifles for darscosnition.

The Company has transfarrad the financial asset i, and anly If, elther:

+ The Campany has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the flnanclal asset, or
+ It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has essumed an obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through’ arranggment. :

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset {the "origlhal
asset'), but assumes » contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to une ar more entitles {the ‘eventual reclplents’), when all of the following three
conditlons are met:

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual reciplents unless 1t has callected equlivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short
term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interast at market rates,

- The Company cannot sell or pledge the orlginal asset other than as security ta the eventua! recipients.

+The Comnany has to tamit ame rash flows it eallects on hehalf of the eventual recinlants withnit material delas.

In additian, the Company is nat entitled to retnvest such cash flows, except for Investments Tn cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
perlod between the coflectlon date and the date of required remitiance to the eventual recipients.

Atransfer anly qualifies for derecognition if either;
- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assst, or
- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset,but has transferrad control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical abillty to sell the asset in Its entirety to ar unrelated third party
and is able to exercise that abillty unilaterally and without Imposing additional restrictions an the transfer, ’

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the fisks and rewards and has retalned control of the asset, the asser continues to be
recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which ¢ase, the Company also recognises an associated llabllity. The transferred
asset and the assoclated Ylahillty are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing invelvement that
takes the farm of a guarantee over the transfarred asset Is measured at the lower of the orlginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
ransldeeatian the Crmnany rotild ke raailred tnonay

If cantinuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option {or both) an the transferred asset, the continuing involvement 1s maasurad at the
value the Company would be required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the
entity's continuing tnvalvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.




Clix Housing Financa Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

3.14.4.2 Financlal Liabillties

A financtal liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabllity 15 discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liablity is replaced by
another from the same lender an substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Habiflty are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification
is treated as a derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new liabillty. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial
liability and the ronsideration paid 15 recngnised in penfif nr lnks.

325 tmpairment of financial assats

3.15.1 Dvetvlew of the ECL principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FYTPL, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, {in this section all referred to as ‘financlal instrumants’). Equity instruments are not subject to
impairmeant under IND AS 108,

The ECL allowance Is based on the credit losses expected to arlse over the life of the asset (the Ifetime expected eredit loss or LTECL), unless thera has been no
significant increase in cradt risk since orlgination, in which case, the sllowsnce is hased on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECLYY

The 12mECL Is the portlon of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financlal instrument that are possible within the 12 manths
after the reporting date. :

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on collactive basis, depending on the nature of the underlyltg portfolio of finandal Instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting perlod, of whether aflnanclal instrument’s cradit risk
has increased significantly since Inltlal recognition thisls further explalned In Noke 36.2.

Based on the above process, the Cornpany groups its [aans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described belovr:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Comparry recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs, Stage 1 loans alse include facilities where the credit

risk has Improved and the lean has been reclassified fram Stage 2 or Stage 3,
Stage 2: When a Ioan has shown a significant increase (n credit rlsk since origination, the company records an allowance for the LTECLs, Stage 2

lpans also nclude facilities, where the credlt risk has Impraved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.
Stage 3: Loans consldered credit-impaired (as outlined In Note 6}, The Company records an atlowance for the LTECLs.

For financial assets for which the company has noreasonable expactations of recovering efther the entire cuistanding amount, or 2 proportion thereoaf,
the gross carrylng amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is consldered a {partial} derecognition of the financiat assat.

3.15.2 The calculatlon of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs hased on a probabllity-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approsimation ta the £IR. A cash shortfall s the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entlty in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined befow and the key elements are, as follows:

“PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihoad of default over a glvan time horlzan. A default mainly happen at a

cartain time over the assessed perlod, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and s still in the partfofio.

sEAD - The Exposure at Default 1s an exposure at a defautt date.

LG - The Loss Glven Default is an estimate of the loss arising In the case where a default pceurs at a given time, [t 1s based on the difference betweaen the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usualiy expressed as a
percentare of tha EAD.

The maxtmum period for which the credit losses are determined 15 the expected life of a financial instrument.
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The meachanlcs of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL 15 calculated as the poriion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from defeult events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates the the 12mECL allowance hased on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12
manths following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default prebabilities are applied t a EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When @ loan has shown a significant Increase in credit risk stnce origination, the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics
are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the Instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (a3 deflned In Note 6.3) , the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The
method is simllar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%,

Loan commitmants: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commltments, the Company estimatas the expected portion of the loan cammiitment that will
he drawn down over ts expected |ife. The ECLis then based on the present value of the expected shortfzilsin cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisians.

3.15.3 Forward looking infarmation
While estimating the expected cradit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring In the economy and market it operatesin. On a
perlodic hasis, the Company analyses If there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the
Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the Internal estimates of FD,
LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methadalogy to reflact such
macro-aconomic trends reasonably.

3.15.4 Assets held for sale
The Company's policy Ts to sell the repossessed asset, Non-financial assels repossessed are transferred ta assets held for sale at fair value less cost ta sell or
principle outstanding, whichever isless, at the repossession date.

3.15.5 Write~offs

Financial assets ave written off either partially or in their entirety basls the DPD threshold {technical write off / different DPD threshold for different
product basis recovery trand) approved by baard OR when asset is deemed irrecoverable / Recovery is expected to flow over time ;though not In the immediate
future / it Is more economical to sell the asset to third party / Obligor is deceased and recovery is unlikely. Financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enfercement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any su hsequent recoveries are
creditad to profit and loss account. .

3.16 Falr value measurement
The Cornpany measures financial Instruments at fair value at each batance sheet date using valuation techniques,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liabillty in an arderly transaction between m_arket participﬁants at
the measuremant date. The fair value measurement s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the llability takes place either:

In the principal marlet for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of 4 principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or Uabllity

The princlpal or the mest advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The falr value of an asset o a ligbility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or {lability, assuming that
rratket particlpants act in thetr aconomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of @ non-financial asset takes into accaunt a market parficipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in Its
highest and best use ar by selling it to another marketlparticiuantthai wauld use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate In the clrcumstances and for which sufficient data are avallable fo measure falr value,
maximising the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of unahservable tnputs.




ClIx Howsing FInance Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Allamount in INR thousands, axcept for share data unless stated otherwise)

All assets and llahilities for which fair value |s measurad or disclosed In the flnanclal statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is stgnificant to the fair value measurement as a whole: .

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) markst prices [n active markets for identical assets or liabilitles
Leval 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurement s directly or Indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuatian techniguas for which the lowest lavel input that |5 significant to the fair value measurement is unehbservable
For assets and [iabllitles that are recognlsed n the flnancial statements on & recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between lavels in the hierarchy by re-assesting categorisation {hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a‘whu[e) at
the and of each reporting petlod.

3.17 Dividend

The Company recognises a llability to make cash distributions to equity helders when the distribution is authorised and the distributien is no longer at the
discration of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of appraval by the shareholders and Interim dividends are recorded
as a liahility on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Diractors.

3.18 Expenditure

Expenses are recognisad on accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and lisbilities. The Comnpany has else enterad into certain cost sharlng
arrangements for resources shared with other entities. The costs allocated to the Company under the cast sharing arrangements are Included in the respective
expenses. The costs allocated to other entities under the cost sharing arrangement are shown as amouits recoverable fram the respective parties.

3.19 statement of cash flows
staternent of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities ls reported

using Indirect methad adiusting the net nrofit for the effects of ;
1) changes during the period In operating recebvables and payables transactions of 3 non-¢ash nature;

i non-cash ltems such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealized foreign currency gains and losses; and

Iy Adl ather ltems for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows,

Cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for genera! usa as on the date
of Balance Sheet

4, Recent Indian Accounting Standavds / Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA} notifies new standards or amendments to the exlsting standards under Companles indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
from time to time. During the year, the MCA has not notlfied any new standards or amendments to the existing standards which are effective from April 01,
2024.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Nate 5A; Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks in current accounts : 9,179 7,604
In Deposits with original maturity of less than three months ~ 1,063
: 8,179 8,667

Note 58: Bank balance other than above
Earmarked Balances with Bank * : 17,280 15,372
: 17,280 15,372
Total 26,459 24,039

* Earmarked balances with banks are held as Margin money/ are under lien. The Company has the complete beneflcial
interest on the Income earned from these deposits. :

For the purpose of the statement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalenis comprise the fellowing:

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balances in Current account with:
- Scheduled banks ' ' 9,179 7,604
-Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months ' - 1,063
9,179 8,667




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
{Alf amount In INR theusands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 6; Loans :
In indio
At Amortised Cost
Term loans 640,131 1,068,556
Inier-corporate loan : - 90,000
Total [A} Gross ' 640,131 1,158,556
Less: Impairment loss atlowance ' {24,388) {101,821)
Total [A)} Net 615,743 1,056,735
Out of above
Secured by tangible assets (property including land and
builiding) 640,131 1,068,556
Unsecured - 90,000
Total {B) Gross 640,131 1,158,556
Less: Impairment loss allowance , (24,388} {101,821)
Total (B) Net 615,743 1,056,735
Qut of above
Loansin India
Public Sector - -
Cthers : 640,131 1,158,556
Total (C] Gross . 640,131 1,158,556
Less: Impairment loss allowance (24,388) (101,821}
Total (C] Net €15,743 1,056,735

Note : No Loans or Advances are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are
repayable on demand cor without specifying any terms or period of repayments (31 March 2023 INR
Nil}. _ :

Securitisation:

The Company uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transactions generally result in the
transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt
securities. Securitisation has resulted in the continued recognition of the securitised assets.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that
ara not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities.

Loans and advances measured at amortised cost As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at

amortised cost
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 175,871 308,713
The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

207,353 344,924
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Clix HousIng Finance Limited
Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
(/) amount in MR thousands, except For share data unless stated othenwise)

Hota 6.2 Loan Commitrment

521 An Iysls of ch in the gross carrying amount ahd the correspanding ECL allowances I relation to loan commitinent is, as follows:

Rarticulars FY 2023-24 - FY 2022-23

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage L Staga 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross cerrylng amount opening balance - - - " 53,109 - . 53,108
Mew fean commitment glven - - - . - - . -
Assets disbursed/cancelled - - - - {53,104] - - {53,309)
Gross caerying amount closing balance - - - - - . N N
6.2.2 Recanciliation of ECL balance is glven belows

Particulars FY 2023.24 FY 2022-23

Particulars Stage 1 Hage 2 Stage 3 Total Staga L Stage 2 Stage 2 Total

ECL aflowence - opening balance - - - - 266 . - 266
New laan commitment glven - - . - - - - .
Assats dishursed/cancelted - - - - 266} - - (256)
ECL allowance - cloring balance - - - - - - - -

Modified Financisl Assets

The Company renagatiates loans given to customers in financial difficulties {referred to as forbearance activities, restructuring or rescheduling} to Imprave the potentlal of repayment by the
horrower maximize eollection opportunitles and to minimise the risk of default, Under the Companies forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the customer I
currently In default on its debt or If thera is a high risk of default, there Is evidence that the customer made alf reasonable efforts Lo pay under the orlginal contragtual tarms and the
customer Is expected to be able 1o meet the revlsed terms. The reviced terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of Interest payments and amending the terms of
loan covenants. The Senlor team Risk Management Committee regularly reviews reparts on forbasrance activities and performance. Upon renegotistion, such accounts are downgraded
basis management assessment and are subsequently upgraded ta Stage 1 only upon observation of satisfactary repayments of one year from the date of such down-gradation and
accordingly loss allawance is measured using 12 month probability of default {PO).




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes fo Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.3 Impalrment assessmant

The references below show where the Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach 1s set out
in these notes. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting palicies.

- Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments, The Company may
also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the financial
condition of the barrower or an assessment that adverse market condltions may have-a disproportionately
detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the gualitative assessment of whether an instrument
is in default, the Company alse considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non repayment of the
loan. When such events oceur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate,
Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual
repayments are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2.

It is the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3
when none of the default criteria are present. The decision whather to classiy an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once
cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates there has been
a significant reduction in credit risk.

- Probabhility of default

The credit rating provided by the external rating agencies/account level delinguency/ internal matrix has heen
considered while assigning Probability of Default (PD} at a portfolio level. The PDs are computed for homogenous
portfolio segments.

- Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Campany. Considering that PD
determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

- Loss given default (LGD)

The Company uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for idantified homogenous poois for the purpose of
calculating LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the
NPV of the recoveries,

- Significant increase in credit risk

The Company evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The Company also assesses if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since the previously risk taking into consideration both qualitative and guantitative
information . One key factor that indicates significant increase in credlt risk is when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due or where existing terms are renegotiated.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

One time restructuring (OVR) of loan accounts was permitted by RBI vide circulars dated 6 August 2020 'resclution
framewark for COVID-19 related stress’ and 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME} sector — Restructuring
of Advances’ and circulars dated 5 May 2021 'Resolution Framework - 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses’ and 'Resolution Framework 2.0 — Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro,
Small and Medium Ente'rprlses {MSMEs)'. The Company has considered OTR as an indicator of significant Increase
in eredit risk and accordingly classified such loans as stage 2. Further, the Company on demonstration of regular
payment for certain accounts post renegotiation which are subject to no overdue / satisfactory performance
during the specified period as per the respective circular guidelines regarding the reversal of provisioning and
relevant staging if no other indicators of significant increase In credit risk on such loans. '

- Grouping financlal assets measured oh a collective basls

The Company calculates ECLs on collective hasis on following asset class:-
- Housing portfolio
- Loan against property (LAP} portfoiio

Note 6.4 Collateral

The Company holds coflateral io mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets.The main types of collateral
and the types of assets, these are associated with are listed in the table below. The collateral presented relates to
instruments that are measured at amortised cost.

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Residential & Non-Rasidential Propertties 640,131 1,068,556
Total 640,131 . 1,068,556

The Company periodically monitors the market value of collateral and evaluates its exposure and loan to value
metrics for high risk customers., ’

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral
at March 31, 2024. There was no change in the Company's collateral policy or collateral quality during the period.

Refer Note 36.2.2 for risk concentration based on loan to value {(LTV)




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{all amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.5 Transfer of financial assets that are derecognised in their entirely _

As 2 shart-term finaneing approach, the Company has been transferring or selling certain pools of loan
receivahles by entering in to direct assignment transactions with Investors for consideration received in cash at
the inception of the transaction. With an objective of better liquidity and risk management, the Company, during
the course of the year, obtains approval of the Investment Committee and Board of Directors through circulating
board resolution for undertaking direct assignment transactions of certain value of loan assets comprising the
collateral based loan receivables at appropriate times during the year. Thase transactions are carrvied out after
complying with extant RBI guidelines. Besides direct assignment as alternate financing tool, it is alse being used as
a effective Balance sheet management through better liquidity and risk management by transfer of assets from
risk averse to risk takers, Such sale/transfer daes not change the Company’s business objective of holding financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows. The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction In which substantlally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financizl asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial asset.

The carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets not in default categery measured at amortised cost as
on date of transfer during year is INR 62,067 (Assighed - Rs, ©8,963) (Previous year: 561,995 (Assigned - Rs.
6,23,457)) and consideration recefved for such transfer is INR 62,067(Pravious year: 5,61,995) respectively.

Note 6.6 Risk assessment model

The Company has deslgned and operates its risk assessment madel that factors in both quantitative as well as
gualitative infarmation on the loans and the barrowers. Depending upon the nature of products, the maodel uses
histarical empirical data to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on
the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller homogenous partfolios from the perspective of credit -
behavior.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes ta Financial Statemends for the vaaranded 31 March 2024
{All armount i’ INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otharwise)

Aset Asat
31 March 2024 31 WMarch 2023
Note 8; Gther financlal assats
EiS Receivable 105348 211,634
Lass: Impairment loss allowance [1.591) (2,366]
Securlty deposit i 131 13
Other financial assets . 1407 4,023
Tatal 105,295 213,422
Asat Aset
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 10: Other nen financial assets
Prepaid axpensas . 131 90
Advante to suppliers 298 131
Balance with statubory/government authorities
- GST input eredit 13,702 14,074
Total 14,182 14,995
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Nate 11: Payables

Tratle Pavables

Total outsanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprisesit 1,341 555
Total outsanding dues of Creditors other thar Micro Enterprises and Small 22,086 14,691
Enterprises

Other Payables .
Total outsanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprissst - -
Tatal outsanding dues of Creditars ather than Micro Enterprises and Small - -

Enterprises
23427 155245

The following ageing schedule is glven far trade payables dua for payment
Asak3l M_a_f_cl_‘l 2024

Unbilled / Nat due Outstanding for following periods fram due date of paymant Toial

Particulars Lass than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years |More than
3 years

Trads Payahl
15 ME 1,341 - - - - 1,341
lii)Cthers 21,932 62 030 4B 44 22,085
{iii} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - B -
{iv} Disputed dues - Qthers - - - - - .
Total 23,373 62 0.30 48 44 23,427
As gt 31 March 2028

Unbilled / Nat dige Qutstanding for following perlods frem due data of payinent Total

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years Z-3years  |Mare than
3 years

Trade Payahl
I}MSME : 508 45 - - - 5353
{iijOthers 13,962 729 - - - 14,691
{lil) Dlspurted duas — MSME - - - - - -
{iv] Dlsplited duss - Others - - - - - -
Total 14,471 775 - - - 15,246

#Based on and to the extent of the infarmation received by the Campany from the suppliers regarding thefr status under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Davelopment Act, 2006
{MSMED Act), tha relevant particulars as at the year-end are furnished hefow:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,341 555

Principal amaunt due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end.

Imterest accrued and due to supgliars under MSMED Act, on the above - -

amaunt as at the year end

Payment made to suppliers {other than interest} beyend the appelnted - - . ;
day, during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16}
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 14)

Interest dua and payable to suppllers under MSMED Act, for payments - -
already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpald at the year end to suppliers - -
under MSMED Act




Clix Housing Finance limited _
Nates to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat As at
31 Mavrch 2024 31 March 2023

Note 12: Debt Securitias
{A) At Amortised Cost
Secured
Non-convertible debenturas# )
- From Bank - 406,253

- 206,253 .

{B) Out of above
Debt securities in India - 406,253
Debt securities outside India - -

- 406,253

[C} Terms of repayment of non covertible debentures as at 31 March 2024

Mare than 3
Original maturity of NCDs {In no. of days}) Duewithinlyear Duelfc2years Due2to3years years Total

Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - - -

365 - 730 - - - - -
731 -1035 - - - - -

1056 - 1460 - - - - -

Mare than 1460 - - - - -

Total - - : : - -

Terms of repayment of non covertibie debentures as at 31 March 2023

More than 3

Orlginal maturity of NCDs [In no, of days) Duewithin 1l year Duelto2years Due2to3 years years Total

Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - - -

365 - 730 300,000 - - - 300,000

731 - 1085 100,000 - - - 100,000

1096 - 1460 - - - - -

More than 1460 - . - - N

Total* 400,600 - - : - 400,000

- Interest rate ranges from 0.20% p.a. to 11% p.a. as at 31 March 2023
* INR 1,261 difference on account of EIR adjustment and INR (7,514) on accaunt of interest accrued but not due.




Gilv Houslng Flnanee Lmitad
Motes to Flnanclal $tatanserts for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
(B amoun’ In MR thausands, except for share deta onless 2tated otherwisel

Azat Aaat
3. MaEh 2pgd 31 March 2033
Thate 13: Irige father han ek ftlesy
Secured [aramortied cost)
Borrewing egalnsl Secoftised Portfolle® 175,571 e, 712
Total §ross (&) 195,081 308,719

Bofrewlngs In kdla
BorrowIngs autslde Indla
Tatal [}tz tally wikh (A}

+ ng Bgaingl Pontfollo 3 |lablllcles to securidied asset thak has been re lsad due 1o non of d lan critarta & par Ind A5,
The Company has berrewed funds ieem banks and finanslal Ingtitutions an tha basgle of security of currant assels. it has flled quartedy relurns or statements of currant gssets with banks and Anancal and the zald s are
In agresmant with books af ageounts.
Terrne of F Borraving aAsknet fzad Partiolls a5 at Marsh 31, 2024
Dusa i lehln 1 Yesr Due 119 3 Yours Moke thar 2 yaan Talal
Repayments o, of Instalments Ameunt Mo, offnstalments  Amount  Nooof Instalments  Ampunt Mo of instalments Amsunt
hontily rep symenl cchadule a1 ALOTE 24 29,303 LY 134,792 air 175,761
Tot=l 12 JL'O-N 24 24,593 9L 134,193 7} 175 781
« |Hbarast rale rapmes from 12.10% poa, te 11, 70K poa, a2 6t 31 kdaech 2034,
- INR [74] differance on secount of EIR adpustment and INA %19 on sccount of interasl accriad kit oot dua.
Tanms of rapaymant of Borrowlng agalnst Sacurltlaed Pevtfalle as ot ferdh 31, 2443
Due within 1 Yaar Due 1 to 3 Yaars More than 3 yeara Talsl
Reopsymants N, af Inslalments Amount MovofInstaltments  Amownt Moo instalments  Amaunt  No. of Insalments Atnounk
Qusrtery repayment scheduke kS 2,336, 24 23281 373 280235 411 307,513
Tatal E w 24 2.5521 275 ZBD&H 344, g7, 412,

= [nterast ritn randed fram LO.BSX p.2. to TL1CH p.2, a5 #1 31 March 2023,
= INFK | 745} diffarance on sccouht of EIR ad]dstnmentand (MR 1555 b atosunt of Interest scerusd but nal due.




Clix Houslng Finance Limited

MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

As.at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 14: Other financial liabilities
Employee benefit payables 1,441 1,540
Inter company payables 3,212 3,226
Advances received from customer 17,474 84,358
Total : 22,127 89,124
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 15: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Leave encashment 378 352
- Gratulty payable 504 349
Other provisions 237 237
Total 1,119 538
Asat Asat

31 wMarch 2024

31 March 2023

Note 16: Other non-financlal liabllities
Statutory dues payable
Total

797

1,211

797

1,211




Clix Housing Finance Limitect
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount (n INR theusands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 17: Equity Share Capital
Authorised :
552,000 550,000
55,200,000 (31 March 2023: 55,000,000} Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
552,000 550,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up: i
552,000 550,000
55,200,000 (31 March 2023: 55,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each '
Total 552,000 550,000




Clix Houstng Findmnea Limited
Netes ta Finanedrl Statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2024
{all amourm in INA thousands, except for share data unless stated othervise)

The reconciliation of equlty sharas outstansling at the beginning and at the end of the reparting period.

Name of the shareholder A5 at 31 March 2024 A5 3t 31 March 2023

N, of shares INR In 000's o, of shares INR I 000's
Equity Share at the beginning of year 55,000,000 550,000 55,000,000 550,000
Adid: Shares |ssued during the year 200,000 2000 - -
Equity share at the end of year 55,200,000 552400 55,000,000 550,000

During the current year the Company has issued 2,00,000 Equity shares (Face Value INR 10 per share] at IMR 10 per share ta Holding company for censideration of INR
2000,

Sharas held by holding Company / ultimate halding company and/ or thelr subsldiaries/ assoclates

Name of the shareholder As at 81 March 2024 3ot 31, March 2023

Na. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Holding Company
€Ity Capltal Services Private Limited 55,199,994 100.008 54990994 100.00%
Tatal 55,100,904 LK.00% 54,999 994 100.00%

As per records of the Cempany, including 1ts register of sharehaldersf members and sther declarations recsived from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both [=gal and beneficial pwnerships of sharas.

Shares hald by promotars

Name of the shareholider As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

M. of shargs % of holding No. of sharas % of halding
Halding Compary
Clix Capital Services Private Limlted 55,199,994 100.00% 54,999,924 1000084
Detalls of sharaholdars holding more than 5% sharas in the Compeany
Namae of tha sharehalder Asat Asat

Mo, of sharas % of holding Mo. of shares % of holding
Clix Capltal Services Privats Limbted 55,199,934 100.00% 54,995,594 100.0086
Fotal 55,199,994 100.00% 54,593,994 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharehciders/ members and ather declaretions recalved from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
ahove shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

Cliix Capltel Sarvices Private Limited is a wholly ownett subsldiary of Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd, {Mauritius)

Rights, praferencas and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having & par value of INR 30 par share, Each shareholder of the Company |5 entithed to vata in prapartion of the share
of paid-up capital of the Company held by the shareholder. Each sharehelder 15 entitled to receive interim dividend when it is declared by the Board of Directors. The
final dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are paid when spproved by the shareholders at annual general meeting,

In the event of liquidation, the harenotders or the Company are entitiad to recstve the remaining assets of the Lompany atter discharging all Nabliitias af the
Company in proportion to thebr shareho)dings.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the pericd of five years immediately praceding the reporting data

Asat As ot Asat Asat Asat
March 312024  March 31 2023 March 33 2022  March 31 2021 March 31 2020
Equity shares allotted as fully pald bormus shares by ' - ,o- - - -
capitalization of securities premium
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by - - - . -
capitalisation of peneral reserve
Equity shares allotted as fully psid bonus shares by - - . - -
capltallsation of Credit halance in Statement of Profit and '

Loss
Total - - - - -

Particular

Ageregate number of bought back durlng the period of five years immediately preced ing the reporting date

As at As at As at As at As at
March 312024 March 312023 March 31 2022 Warch 31 2021 Warch 31 2020
Equity shares bought back by capitalisation of Statement of - : - - -

Profit and Lass and transferred to capital redernption reserve
{IMR 10 face value of each share |

Particular

Total - - - - -




(a)

{b)

{c)

€lix HousIng Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{all amount in INR thousands, except for share data untess stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 18: Other Equity

Share based payment reserve

Opening balance 1,482 701
Compensation options granted during the year 1,250 791
Reversal towards Cash Settlement during the year {501) -
Closing balance ' 2,241 1,492
Statutory reserve u/s 20C of The Nationa! Housing Bank
Act, 1987
Opening balance o 17,825 11,869
Addition during the year 4,517 “5,956
Closing balance 22,342 17,825
Retalned earnings
Opening balance ' 3,625 (20,197
Profit for the year 22,676 29,559
~Transfer to statutory reserve, (4,517} {5,956)
- Re-measurement (losses)/gains on definad benefit .
plans, net of tax (89) _ 219
Closing balance ) 21,685 3,625
Total 16,278 23,944

"Share hased payment reserva: The holding Company provides share hased payment schemes to the

employees of the Company.Share based payment reserve is used 1o recognise the value of equity settled share

based payments provided to employees as a part of their remuneration.

Statutory reserve ufs 29C of The Natlonal Housing Bank Act, 1987: Section 29C (i) of The National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 defines thai every housing finance institution which is a company shall ¢create a reserve fund
and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclased in the
statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. Accordingly, during the year ended 31 March
2024, The Company has transterred an amount of INR 4,517 (31 March 2023: INR 5,956] to the Reserve in

terms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank ("NHB") Act, 1987.

Retained earnings: These represent the surplus in the profit and loss account and is free for distribution of

dividend.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwisa)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Nota 19 Interest Income
On financial assets measured at Amortised cost
Interest income on
- Loans 97,880 158,508
- Inter-corporate Loan 4,308 4,337
Total 102,688 162,845
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Nete 20; Fees and commission Income

Application and other fees - 57
Other charges 7,068 12,109
Total 7,068 1?.!166
Note 20.1: Revenue from contracts with customers
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Type of services or service

One Time application and other fees

Other Charges

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Geographical markets

India

Outside india

Total Revernue from Contracts with Customers

Timing of revenue recognition .
Services transferred over time

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Information about Company's performance obligations

- 57
7,068 12,109
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166

The Performanace obligation in regards of arrangements where the above fees is charged per transaction executed

is recognised at point in time when transaction is exacuted.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2022
Note 21: Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes

{A) Net galn/ {loss) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss
(i} On trading portolio
- Investments 3,450 8,037
Total Net gain on financial instrumants 3,450 8,937
{B)Fair Yalua changas:
-Realised 2,653 9,765
-Unrealisad -MTM gatn/(loss) 797 {832
Total Net gain on fair value changes(A) to tally with (B} 3,450 8,937

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note 22: Other income
interest income
- on fixed deposits
- on income tax refund
Mistellareous Income
Total

© 2,611
o3
2,162

4,866




Clix Housing Finance Limlited
Notes to Finanglal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in TNR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Year ended Yeat ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Nota 23: Finance Costs

At amortised cost

interast on borrowings [Including debt securities)

-Term loans from banks - 50,247
- Nen convertible debentures 18,515 43,480
- Borrowing against Securitised Portfallo 28,497 15,376
- Imter-corporate loans 5,940 21,033

Bank chargas 51 103

Total 53,003 130,339
Year anded Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Nota 24: Fees and commission expense
Fees and commission expensa 1,582 4,843
1,582 4,843
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 iarch 2023

Mote 25: Impalrment on financial Instrumeants

At amortised cast
ECL on loan assets {77,433} 52,815
ECL on loan assets adjusted against interest income on Stage 3 [oans* {1,478) (1,966)
£CL on Loan Commitment - [266)
Bad debt written off / recovered {1,790} %872
ECL on other financlal assets {775) 1,587
Write off of other financial assets 93 843 -
Total 12,367 ?15044

* relating to interest on credit impaired assets, which |s netted off from Interest income In accordance with Ind AS 109 on Financial

Instruments.

Year ended Year ended
: 31 March 2024 3 March 2023

Note 26: Employee Benefits Expenses :
salaries and wages £,591 10,073
Contribution ta provident and other funds [refer note 31) ] #55
Share Based Payments to employees 1,250 791
Staff welfare expenses 5 103
Total 10,506 11,822

Year ended Year enced
3L March 3928 ......... 31 March 2023

Note 27: Other expenses '
Rent 387 357
Printing & stationary 2 G&
Rates and taxes 20 R
Repairs and maintenance - 21
Insurance 339 404
Travelling and corvayance 302 1,155
Postage, tefegrarms and telephone - .20
Legal and professional fees ™ 15,661 14,408
Outsourcad service costs 208 2,884
Advertisement and sales promotion 52 104
Miscellansgus 3 8
‘fotal 16,972 19,430

* Legal and professional charges Includes auditars remuneration (excluding goods and service tax) comprises the following:

Partlcutars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As auditors;

Audit fee .
-Statutory audlt 335 235
-Limited review 125 375

In other capacity:

Other services {certification faes) 40

Reimbursement of axpanses 7

Total 657
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Clix Houzlng Financa Limitad
Motes to Financlel Statements for the vaar ended 31 March 2024

[0 #mount In INR thoussnds, axcept for share data unless stated otherwlse}

Mote 28: Incame Tax -
Clerrent tax

{1) The compenends of income tax expensa for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 ere:

Profit or loss section Year ended . Year ended

31 March 2024 21 March 2023
Current Income tax:
Current Income tax charge . 23,375
Adjustments In respect of current Incone tax of previous year {128} -
Deferved tax:
Relating ta orlgination and reversal of termporary differences G,765 (13,960)
Adjustments in respect of Deferred tax recagnised for previous year {118} {2,357]
Income tax gxpense reported nthe staternent of profit or less 5,51% 7,058
Current tax - 23,375
Current tax for earlier years 128} -
Defarred tax 6,647 {16,317}
{ii] Other prehensive income secti Year ended Year entdad

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Currant Ineome tax:
Relating to orlginatlon and reversal of bemporary differences (300 73
Income tax expense reported in the other comprehensive sectlon (30} 73
Income tax expense reparted in the statemeant of profit and foss 5,989 7,131
{iiii} Recanciliation of tax exy and the aceounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate far 31 March 2024 &
31 March 2023
Fartleulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 3
Profit before tax 249,155 36,615
Indian statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at applicable statutory Income tax rate (A} 7,348 9,215
Adjustment in respest of Curent tax of pravious year (B} (123) -
Non-deduct/ble expenses (L) 321 198
Impact due ta nanrecognistion of DTA on timing items (D) {1,022) {2,358)
Income tax expense reported In the proflt or loss section (A+B+C+0) 6,529 2057
Other Comprehensive Income (113} 282
Tax at stamutory Income tax rate (€ } {30} 73
Impact due to non recagnition of DTA on iming difference (F) - -
Tax itmpact reported on Other Comprehensive Income (E+F) (30} 73

Deferrad Tax

Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded In the Income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024:

Deferrad tax Deferrad tax Netdeferred  Income statement ocl
assets liability tax assat /
{liabifities)
As at As at As Bt Year ended Year entled
31 March 2624 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Other Intangible Assets - {1,B96) {1,855) 72} -
ECL on Loan and advancas/ Investment/ Loan commitment 4,084 - 4,584 (20,008} -
Provislon for expense J 438 Disallowance 1,423 - 1,423 184 -
Unabsarbed loss 12,484 - 13,484 13,484 -
Otbers - (263) [263) (200} -
Unamortised cost (net of unamertised faes} - 18,105) 18,10%) {14} -
Remneasurement of defined benefit liability - - - {30} 30
19,891 (10,264) 5,627 (5,647 30




The following table shows deferred tax recarded in the balanee shaet and changes recorded In the Income tax expense for the year encled 31 March 2023:

Defarrad tax Deferred tax Netdeferred  Income statement Q!
assets liahility tax asset /
{'abllities}
As at As at As at Yaar anded Year ended
31 Merch 2623 31March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 21 March 2023
Other Intanglble Assets - {1824} {1,824} (1,824) -
ECL on Loan and advances/ Investment/ Loan commitment 24,991 - 24,591 24,851 -
Provigian for expense f 438 Disailowance 1,229 - 1,229 1,229 -
Unabsorbed loss - - - - -
Others - 62) (&2} {62) -
Unamortised cost {net of unarmaortised fees) - (8,091} {8,081} {2,001} -
Remeasurement of defined banefit llablliy - - - 73 73}
26,220 (9,977) 16,244 16,217 {73}

Mote 29: Earning per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS] is calculated by dividing the net prafit for the year attributable te equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of aquiy shares

outstanding durlng the year,

Difuted ERS ts calculsted by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weightad average nuriber of equity shares gutstand)
weighted average number of equity shares that would be kssued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential srdinary sheres into ordinary shares,

Perlsd endet Period ended

March 31,2024 ___ Maren31, 2023

Foliowlng reflects the profit and share data used In £85 compurations:

Basle

Welghted average nurnber of equity shares for camputation of Basic EPS (INR

In ¢00's] 55,133 55,000
Mgt prafit for calculation of basic EPS (IR In 000%) 22,678 24,358
Bask earning per shara 0.41 0,53
Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares for cemputation of Dituted EPS

{INR 10 00D's) 55,133 55,000
Net profft for calculation of Diluted ERS {INR i 000's) 22,676 29,550
Dilutad earning per share ) 0.41 : .54
Norminal valua of equity shares {In INR) 10.00 10.00

Reconclitation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 33 March 2024 for basic and diluted
earnings per share:

Particulars : Welghted average no. of shares

) Brglc Diluted
Equity shares of foce vatue of IMR 34 per share
Dpening 55,000 55,000
Atttitlons 133 133
Clasing 55,133 55,433

Recondiliation of welghted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2023 for basic and diluted £arnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares
Basle Diluted

Equity shares of foce value of INA 10 per share

Opening . ’ 55,000 55,004

Additions . _

Closing 55,000 55,000

Note 30: Segment Information

ng during the year plus the

The Cormpary's primary business segment is reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e. Housing Finance. Accordingly, ra separate disclosure for segment reporting s
requirad ta e made in the financiat statements of the Company. The Company operates principally within indls and does nat bave operations In ecenomic envirenments with different

risks and returns; hence, It is considered operating in single geographical sagment.
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CHx Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial $tatements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwise)
Note 32: Contingent liabilities, commitments
A} Contingent liabilities
There is contingent liabllity amaunting Rs. 14,500 as at year ended 31 March 2024 {31 March 2023 : Rs. 14,500)

B) Commitment

The Company has a commitment of Nil {31 March 2023 : Nil) towards undrawn loan sanctions.
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Clix Housing Flnance Lirmited

Notes te Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(41l amourtt In INR thousands, excepl for share ¢ata unless stated otherwlee)
Note 33: Related Party Disclosures

As per Ind AS 24, the disclasures of transactions with the related partlas ara given belpw,

Particulars

Cltx Capital Services Private Limitad

Clix Analytics Private Limited [liquidatad w.e.f. 03rd lantary 2024}

Clix Loans Private Limited (Liguideted w.e.f. 29th November 2022
Tezzract Fintech Private Limted (w.e.f. 2nd November 2023}
Tezz Capital Fintech Private Limited {w.e.f. Znd November, 2023)

Key Managerial parsonnel

Kaushlk Remkrishran

Vikramn Rathi

Aparna Bihany [from 02 December 2022)
Amit Kumar lgin

Alka Yaday (till 13 January 2023}

Winu R italra {frorm 17 August 2023)

Reletionship

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidlary
Fellow Subsidiary
Feflow Substdiary

Fellow Subsidiary

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relatlenships:

Mon Exgcutive Diractor
Nan Executive Director

Whale-time Directar

Chief Financlal Offtcar (CFCH

Company Secretary
Cormpany Secratary

b The nature and volume of fransactlans carried out with the above refated parties in the ordinary course of business ara as follows :

L. Remuneration to Kay Managerial |

Year endad Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Short Term Employee Benefits 6,940 5,225
Share based Paymentsy 1,250 791
3190 . 6016

The remuneration given to key managerial personnel does not Incluta the provisions made far gratuity and leave henﬁt, as theyare determined on actugrial basis For the

Company as a whale.
# Represent ESOP reserve created tawards options granted to KMP's
Mo remuneration has bean paid by the Company to Its directors during the year. (2023: Mil}

2. Other Transactions

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

Amaunt recelvet]

Interest an Inter Corporate Loans
Clix Capital Services Private Limiteg

Procaeds from Transter of Financial assats (asslgnmant)
Clix Capital Sarvices Private Limited

Amount received on behalf of the related party
Clix Capital Services Private Limitad

Arount pald by the company on behalf of the Relatad Party
Clix Capital Sarvice Private Lirnited

Amount paid by the company recelvad on behalf of related party tawards financial assets
(Diract Assignment)

Clix Cagital Service Private Limlted

Praceeds from Investment recelved in equity shares

Clix Capital Services Privated Limited

Expense towards share based payment schemes of Holding Company

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Inter Corporate loans taken
Chx Capital Service Privete Limited

Intar Corporate lnans given
Clix Capltal Service Private Limited

4,508

62,067

400

2,000

200,000

90,000

Amount paid

5,840

300

3,037

749

200,000

Amount recairer

4,337

3,500

30,000

10,000

Amountpaid |

21,033

791
100,000

1,130,000

{c} Balance outstanding at the year end

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 202

Amounts Payable
Inter company payables
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Amounts Recelvabla
Inter Corporate loans
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

3,212

3,226

312

3,226
T —

80,000

90,00




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Nocte 34: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capltal includes issued equity capltal, share premium and all other erUity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company, The primary objective of the Company’s capital management Is safety and security of
share capltal and maximize the shareholder value,

The Company manages its capltal structure in light of changes in econemic conditiens and the requirements of the financial covenants. The
company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by net worth,

Debt to net worth ratio

(INR in thousands)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dabts 175,971 714,866
Net worth ' 598,278 572,944
.|Debt to Net woth {times} : 0.29 1.25

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached ta the Interest-bearing loans and berrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the lender to immedlately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives, policles ar processes for managing capital during the years endet_:l 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Ma rch 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

35 Fair value measurement

35.1 Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderfy transactien in the principal
{or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly/ indirectly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

In order 10 show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
technicues.

35.2 Valuation governance
The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to
ensure appropriate safeguards are In place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product Initiatives {including their valuation
methodologies) are subject to approvals by Asset Liability Committee [ALCO) which shall be reported to the Board of Director. The
responsibility of ongoing measurement residas with business units . Onee submitted, fair value estimates are also reviewed and
challenged by the Risk and Finance functions.

35.3 Assets and liabllities by fair valug hierarchy
The company's investrnent in Mutual Fund is the only financial asset measured at fair vatue through Profit & Loss, The fair value of

units held in mutual funds are measured based on thelr published net asset value {NAV) taking into account redemption and/for any
other restrictions. Such Instruments are ciassified under Level 1. Fair valua of such investments held at 31 March 24 is INR 11,672
{31 March 2023: INR 10,875 ).

35.4 Valuation technigues

Mutual funds
Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value {NAV), taking into account redermption and{or other
rEStI"ICtIDf'IS

35.5 Valuation methodologies of financial instruments net measured at falr value

Loans - Most of the loans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reflecting current market pricing. Hence carrying value
of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

Borrowings and debt securlties -

- Fair value of fixed rate borrowings is detemined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market
Interest rate charged for similar new borrowing and carrying value of such borrowing approximates fair value at financial statement
level,

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities - The managerment assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade
pavables and other financlai labilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, excapt for share data unless stated otherwise)

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management
framework, including ongeing identification, measurement and menitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management Is critical o the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and interest rate risk. It Is
also subject to various operating and business risks.

Risk management struture and policies
The Board of Directars are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the rlsk management strategles and

principles. The Risk Management Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing
principles, frameworks, policies and limits, The Risk Management Committee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring
risk levals and reports to the Board.,

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent contral
process 15 maintained, The unit works closely with and reports to the Risk Management Committee, to ensure that procedures are
compliant with the overall framework. .

The Unlt Is zlso responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Company. Fach business group
has its own unit which s responsible for the control of risks, including monitoring the actual risk.of expasures against authorised limits and
the assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions, The Company’s Treasury is responsible for managing Its assets and
liabilities and the overall financial structure. Itis also primarily responstble for the funding and lguldity risks of the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur 2 loss because its customers or counterparties fall to discharge their contractual
obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for Individual
counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. Credit risk is
monitored by the credit rislk department of the Company’s indepandent Risk mangament Unit. It Is their responsibility to review and
manage credIt risk. The Company assesses the credlt guallty of all financial instruments that are subject to credit risk.

Exposure ta credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum expasure to credit risk was INR 747,017
and INR 1,374,344 as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of loan balances and othar
financial assets.




36.2.2

Clix Hoursing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
[All arnount in INR thausands, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

Analysls of risk concantration

- The Company’s concentrations of risk are managed hased on Laan to value [LTV) segregation as wall as the purpose of loan i.e. where It Is a laan for house

purchase or loan agaln property for business purpeses. The following tables stratify cradit exposures from loans to custorners by ranges of loan-to-value {LTv)
ratio and on product basis. LTV is calculated a5 the ratlo of gross amount of the [oan - or the amount committed for laan commitments - to the valus of the
collateral, The value of the collateral for loans 15 hased on collateral value at originatton.

31 March 2024
Loans t0 customers:

LTV wise bifuremtion:

LTV hucket

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Ameount

wE-A0%

72,526

15,193

4,238

37064

105,962

12,278

12,544

130,785

Morg than 40%- upto E0%
Maore than 60%- upto 80%

254,275

53,703

47,357

355,335

Mare than 0%

43,938

10,818

2,191

56,847

Total

481,700

21,999

66,432

640,131

*Exrluding Intercorporate Loan INR 90,000

Customar ﬁrofile

Customer proflle

Stage L

Stage 2

Stage 3

Amount

Housing ioan

355,426

72,252

34,422

462,000

Loan agatnst property

126,275

19,747

32,010

178032

Tatal

481,700

p1,939

6432

640,131

Loan Cormnmitments:

LTV wise hifurcation:

LTV hucket

Stege 1

Stape 2

Stege 3

Amount

e-a0%

More than 40%- upio 60%

Mare than §0%- upto 30%

Mare than 80%

Total

Customer profle:

Customer profile

Siegel

Stapm 2

Stage 3

Amount |

Heousing ican

Luan agalnst property

Total

31 March 2023
Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcatlen:

L1V bucket

Stage 1%

Stage 7 _

Stapa 3

Amount

]

144,553

16,158

387

163,098

Mare than 40%- uptoc §0%

737,237

21,633

7,293

256,152

Mare than 60%- upto 80%H

452,273

61,650

56063

570015

Wlore than 80%

75,485

a5z

3.449

79,250

Total

801,542

8,823

67,151

1,068,556

Custamer profile

Customer profile

Stega 1*

Stoga 2

Stage 3

Arnount

Houslng ioan

520,974

72,635

34,796

628,405

330,568

27,183

32,395

230,151

Loain againgt property
Total

801,542

99,823

67,191

1,068,556

*Exclutling Intercorporate Loan INR 50,000
Loan Commitmants:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LFY bucket

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

%A%

More than 40%- upto 0%

More than £0%- upts 0%

Maore than 80%

Total

Customer profile:

Customer profile

Stage 1

Sagaz

Skapn 3

Amount

Housing loan

Loan against property

Total




36.3

Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk refers to the risk that the Company can not meet its financial obligations, The ohjective of Liguidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are avallable for use as per requirement, The unavailabllity of adequate amount of
funds to repay the financial liabilities and further growth of business may lead to an Asset Liability Management (ALM) mismatch
caused by a difference in the maturity profile of Company assets and liabilities. It may be related to funding — impossibility to obtain
new funding — and to markets — inability to sell or convert liquid assets Into cash without significant losses. Therefore, the Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and undrawn credit facilities, by continuously monitoring forecasted and
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and abilities.

Liquidity risk is managed by ALCO through its perfodic reviews relating to the liquidity position and stress tests under “what Iiff
scenarios and comparing probable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintalned,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the un-discounted cash flows of the company's financial liabilities :

Maturity profile of Financial liabilities as on

Maturity profile of Financial liabilities as on March

March 31, 2024 31,2023
Particulars Borrowings Payables Other Borrowings Payables Other Financial
{including debt Financial | {including debt flabilities
securities) llabilltles securitles)

Less than 1 year 12,595 23,427 22,127 435,996 15,246 89,124
Over 1 year to 3 years 29,393 - - 25,281 - -
Dver 3 year to 5 years 134,292 - - 280,285 - -
Total 176,680 23,427 22,127 741,571 15,246 89,124
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36.4.1

Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Market Risk

Marfeet risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market factors.
Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes In the Interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market
changes. The Company’s exposure ta market risk is primarlly on account of interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The company s subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to custorners at rates and for maturity perlods that may differ from
funding sources. interest rates are highly sensltive to many facters beyond control, including the monetary. policies of of the Reserve Bank
of ndia, deregulation of the financlal sector in Indla, domestic and international economic and political conditians, inflation and other
factors. In order to manage Interest rate risk, the company seek to optimlée borrowing profile between short-term and long-term [oans.
The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds,
Assets and liabllities are categorized into various fime buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liakility Management Committee
supervlse an interest rate sensithvity report perisdically for assessment of interest rate risks.

The company mitlgates its interast rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Interast Rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change In interest rates {all ather variables being constant) of the

Company's statement of profit and loss:

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year entded 31 March 2023
. Effect on Profit hefore Profi
Partlculars Basis Points o Basis Points Effect on Profit
; tax befare tax
Loans
Increase in hasis points 50 2,753 50 4,275
Decrease In basis polnts -50 {2,753} -50 {4,275)
Year ended 31 March 2024 Year endled 31 March 2023
Effect on Profit before Profit
Particulars Basis Points o BasisPoints | riect onPro
tax befare tax
Borrowings® .
Increase in basls points 50 - 50 -
Decrease in basis points -50 - =50 -

* The Company does not have any floatfing rate borrowings, accordingly interest rate sensitivity disclosure for horrowings is NIL,

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Basis Points Effect on Profit before Basis Points Effect on Profit
tax before tax
Invastment in units of Mutual Funds
increase in basis points 50 58 50 54
-50 {58) -50 {54

Decrease in basls points




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherivise)

Note 37 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows contractual maturity profile of carrying value of assets and liahilities:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Asseis Within 12 After12 Within 12 After 12
Total Total
months months months months
Flnancial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,179 - 9,179 -8,667 - 8,667
Bank balance other than included in above 17,280 - 17,280 15,372 - 15,372
Loans 27,026 088,717 615,743 113,040 943,695 1,056,735
Investmeants 11,672 5,315 16,987 16,190 - 16,190
Other financial assets 11,084 94,211 105,295 22,300 191,122 213,422
Non-financlal Assets -
Current tax asset - 10,106 10,106 - 5,248 5,249
Deffered Tax Assets 8,627 9,627 16,244 16,244
Other intanglble assets - 10,185 10,185 - 11,664 11,664
(ther Non financial assets 14,132 - 14,132 14,577 118 14,995
Assat held for sale 13,185 - 13,185 35,891 - 35,891
Total Assets 103,558 718,161 821,719 226,037 1,168,352 1,384 425
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
I} Trade Payahles -
a)'Totai outstanding dues of micro 1341 i 1,341 ' eer ) 555
enterprises and small enterprises
b} total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro enterprises 22,086 - 22,086 14,691, - 14,691
and small enterprises
11} Other Payables -
a} Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterptises - - - - - -
b} total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro enterprises - - - - - -
and small enterprises
Debt Securities - - - 406,253 406,253
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 12,946 163,025 175,871 3,826 304,787 308,713
Other financlal fiabilities(to be specified) 22,127 - 22,127 89,124 - 89,124
Non-Financlal Liabilities -
Provisions 272 847 1,119 189 749 938
QOther Non-financial Liabilities 197 - 797 1,211 - 1,211
Total liabilities . 59,569 163,872 223,441 515,949 305,536 821,485
Net 43,988 554,289 598,278 {280,912) 862,856 572,944
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Cll% Housing Finance Limited

Nates to Financial Stataments for the year endad 21 March 2024
{All amaunt in INR thousands, except far share data unless stated otherwise)

Wote 29, Disclasure pursuant to RBN Notiflcatlon - RBIF2023-20/170 DOR [NBFC}CC.PD.Ne. 109/22.10.106/20:1.9-20 Dmted 13 March 2000 - A

fson batween pravisions req

under Income recognition, asset dassification and pravistoning [IRACP) and impainment allowances as per Ind AS 103 Financlal nstruments’ for the yaar anded 31 March 2024 1

Asset Loss Allowsncas . Difference between Ind
Asset Cassification as per RBI Narms | classfication as [ 8% CAMVANE AMOURE| (o) caguiren e Carryine P"’"::'m::::: | A5109 provisins and
per Ind AS 108 s under Jod AS 109 o P IRACP noms
(8] {2 13} {4) {5)=13} - {4} (6) (F=[4) - [6)
Pesforming Assets
Standard Stage 1 481,700 2,576 474,124 1,304 1,272
Stage 2 91,999 3,077 88,522 1,747 1730
Subtotal 573,698 6,053 567,646 3,051 3,002
Non-Parforming Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stagad 38,354 9,912 28,442 5,?5_3 4159
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 28,075 £.423 19,655 7,020 1,403
1ta J years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stags 3 - - - - -
L | for doubiful Ftaga 3 28,078 8423 19,655 7,020 1402
Losg Stage 3 N - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 66,422 18,335 AR097 12,773 5,562
Other Ttems such as E(S, loan commitments, Stage L 98,291 402 a7798 ; 193
which ara in the ecope of ind AS 109 but nat ’ : !
epvered under current Income Recognition, Stage 2 4,504 173 1431 . 173
Asset  Clagsification  and  Provisioning|
(IRACP) norms Staged 2,453 925 1,528 - 925
Subtotal 105,348 1,551 103,757 - 1,591
Stage 1 573,991 3,063 575,0%2 1,304 1,765
Total Stage 2 $6,603 2,450 92,953 1,747 1303
Stage 3 58,085 19,260 49,625 12,773 BABT |
Total 745479 25,979 719,500 15,824 20,135




Clix Housing Finance Limited .
Motes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All armount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note A8: Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as per Liguldity Risk Management Framework as per Master Diraction - Nen-Banking Financizl Company - Hausing
Finance Cernpany (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {(Non-Banking Financial Company — Scake Based Regulation)
Directlons, 2023,

{} Funding Concentratlon based on significant counterparty (both deposits and barrowings):

Number of Significant . % of Total
A *(INR f Total D its
Counterparties® mount (INR Cr) % of To epos Liabilities
2 17.60 NA 79%

*Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2013-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 Nov 2019 on Liguidity Risk
Managament Framewark for Non Banking Financlal Companies and Core Investment Cam pariies, Funding concentration based on signlflcant enunterparty has
been computed using latest heneficiary pesition instead of original subscribers.

{i}  Ton 20 large depuosits (amount and % of total depositsk:
Mot Applicable,

{iii} Total of top 10 borrowings {amount and % of total barrowlngs):

Amount (iNR Cr] % of Total Borrowings
17.60 100%

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty has been computed using latest beneficiary position instead of origlnal subscribers.

{lv] Funding Concentration based on significant instrumant* f product:

: % of Total
. No. 4}
Sr. No arne of the instrument/product Amount (INR Cr} Liabilltles
2 Other Securitization Liabilities 17.50 70%

*Significant instrument/product is as defined In RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.202/03,10.001/2015-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity
Risk Management Framework for Non-Barking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

{v] Stock Ratlos:

Sk No. Particalars % of Total Public Funds % of Total Liabllities % of Total Agsets
1 Commerctal papers - - -
2 Non-convertlble debentures (ariginal
maturity of iess than one year] ) ) -
3 Other short-term liabilities# 34% 27% 7%

# Other Short Term tiabilities includes advance recelvad from customers

Total tiahilities are excluding equity share capital and other equity
Public funds are considered as total of borrowings

{vi) Institutional set-up for liguidity risk management:

The Board.of Directors has the overall responsibllity for establishing the risk management frameworlc for the Company. The 8oard, In turn has established an ALM
Committee (ALCO) for evaluating, monitoring, and reviewing liquidity and interest rate risk arising in the Campany on both sides of the Balance sheet, The Board
kased on recommendations from the ALCO has prescribed palicies and the risk limits for the management of liguidity risk.

ALCO committee is respensible for managing the risks arising out of Asset Liabifity mismatches consistent with the regulatory requirements and internal risk
tolerances established by the Board. Amongst other responsibilities, ALCO has been empowered fo decide the funding mix for the Campany in light of the future
business strategy and prevalling market conditions. ALCO committee Is conducted at least once in a guarter and the ALCO minutes ave reviewed by the Board
fram time to time,




Clix Housing Finsnee Limitacd

Notes to Financial Statamaents for the year endad 31 March 2024
(Al anount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlise)

Hote 41, Datails of regalutlon plan implemanted under tha Resolution fremaework far COVID-19 raleted stress @5 per RBI circular dated 06 August 2020 (Resolution Framewark - 1.0)
and 05 May 2021 (Resalutian Framewnrk 2.0} s et 31 March 2024 sre glven below:

[INR In thousands)

i a) {8} [ {) 3]

Exposlire to accounts classified|Of {A), aggregete debt|Of [A) amourt wrltten off|OF {A} amount pald by[Exposure  to accounts

a5 Standard conssquent tolthet slipped inte MPA|during the year anded 31fthe borrowers durng|classifled  as  Standard
Type oF borrawer I Eation  of |ution|during the yenr anded 31|Msrch 2024 the year ended 2I|consaguent 14

Man - Pasitlon as at 30[March 2024 March 2024 implamentation af

Septamber 2023 {A} resclutlon plan = Position|

a9 at 31 March 2024

Personal Loans 42,833 8,322 - 4,043 a4, 110 #)
Corporate parsops® - - - - . '1
Of which, MIMEs - - - - -
Qthars - - - - -
Tokal 42833 R332 - 4,048 -
* ps defined In Szetlon 3({7} of the Insohbvency and Bankruplcy Cade, 2018
# INR £,353 thousands upgradad during the half year ended 31 March 2024
Note 42, Changa In |labllities arfsing from financing activitles
Partlculars 1 Aprll 2023 Cash flows Changes In falr valnes Exchange difference Others® 21 March 2024
Dbt securities A{6,252 {408,253} - “ -
Borreavings other than debt securities 308,712 {13l,154) - it:al} 175,871
Total llablities from f 732,566 1538.004) - L350 I
Particulars 1 April 2032 Cash flows Changas In fair valees Exchange diffarence Others* 31 Warch 2023
Debt sacuritles 443,747 - - 2,508 408,253
Bar rewings other than debt securlties 1,661,857 (1,358,110 - 4,966 308,713
Total llabllitle: from financing activitles 2,065,604 {1,358,110) - 7472 ?14.955

* Others calumn Intludes amart|eation of transactton cost and nterest accrued but hot due.

Note 43. Corporate soclal responsibility

Pursuiant to Sectlon 135 of the Companias Act, 20135 the Company |s not required to Incur any expenditure in respect of corporate socis] responsibllity durng the year anded 31 March 2024, (31 Mareh 2023;

iy
Note 44, Expenditure in foraign curraney

The comparky has et Incurred any expenditurs fn foralgn currency durlng cureant year and previous vear,

Noes 45. Un-hedged foralgn currency exposure

The Company’s exposure In respectof forelzn surranty o

" | assats & liablli#

{trade recelvable B trache payables) as at 31 March 2024 is Nil {31 March 2028: Wi}

Meta 46 : At the vear end, the Cornpary dis vt have any leng-term contracts Ihcluding derlvatives contracta for which there were any matarial farasmesble losses.

Nota 4% : Title deeds of immevaYle properties not hald In name of the Company
There are no litle deed: of Immovable propertles which are not held In the name of the company axespt for belows

Relevant line [tam In the Balanca sheet

iDeseription of itam of
propecty

Mei Cairying Yaius*

Tile Deads hald In name

of

Whether title deed
holder is promoter,
director or ralative of
promoberftractor or

Proparty hald since which
data

Rensan for not belng
held In the name of the
tompany

[Asset held far sale

Coflataral properties sgalnst
loans givan

13185

Respectlve borrowers

ployes of
loremotarfiartar
He

Sept 22 -March 24

{Possession of assats

taken under undes
Securirisation and
Reconstruction of
Financlel Assets and
Erforcemant of
Securitfes Interast Act,
2002 {“SARFAES|")

*Groas carrying valus INR 19,725,

Naot= 48 : Dretails of crypto cureency or vivtual curvancy
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto cumancy ar Virkuel currancy during the finanelal years ended 21 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Nate 4% ; Detalls of benami proparty held

No proceadings have baen Inltiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami proparty tndsr the Benami Transactions [Prohikition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rulez made thareunder in the
financial years mpded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note 50: Wilful defauler

The Campany has not been declared as a wilful defawiter by any bank or financlal Institukion or sther lender in the finenclal years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note 51 ¢ Registration of chargas ar satisfaction with Reglstrar of Comtpanies (ROC)

beyend the statutory period.

All eharges ar satlsfactioh are reglsterad with ROC within the statutery perod for tha finaheial years ended 31 March 2034 and 31 March 2022,

N




Clin Housling Flnence Limited
Notes to Finandal Stataments for the yaar sndad 31 March 2024
(Al amount i INR thausands, excapt for shate data unless stated otharwise|

tota 32 : Utlllsatlon of Borrawed funds and share pramlum
The Compay, 35 part of s normal business, grarts loans and advances, makes Investment, provides guarantees ta and aceept from |tz customars, ather entitlas and parsons. Thesa transactions are part of

Company's hermal housing fnarcs business, which is tanductad ensuting adherence to all ragulatary raquiramants, Cther than the transactions descr|bad aboye, no funds have been athancad or Joaned or
Investad [wlther from harrowed funds or share premium or any other saurees o kied of funds) by the Company te ar in amy other parsans or antities, including forelgh entlles {"Imermediaries*] with the
undarstanding, whather recarded In writing ar atherwise, that the intermeadiary shall land or Invast in party identlﬁ;d by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimata baneficiarles). The Company has also not
recelved any fund from any parties {Funding perty} with the understanding that the Company shall whethar, directly or Indirectly iend or Invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Uitimate beneflclarles”} or provide any guarantes, secutlty or the llke on behalf of the ultimats benaflclerias,

Mpte 53 ¢ Compliance with numbar of layars of companlas

The Cormpany has complied with the number of lay=rs preseribed under clause (27) of sectlon 2 of the Act raad with Camnpaniss (Restrletlon on numbar of Laywrs) Rulas, 2017 for the financlel years shded 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Mote 54 : Relationshin with skruck off companies .
The Cotmpany has not baen undertaken any transactions with any company whose neme is sruck off under section 242 of Companias Aet, 2013 or section 560 of Companlas Act, 1256 In tha financlal years
ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Hote 55 : Thers havs basp no svents after the reparting date thet require disclosure In these financial statements {31 March 2023: Nilj.

Note 56 : The figuras of Previcus Year {PY) heve been regrouped/ rearranged, wheraver nacessary to confirm Lo those of the Current Year (Y], The figures have been rounded off to nearast rupes fIn
theusands) and any discrepaney M total and sum of amounts in netes ks dye to rounding aff.

For DMICH & Co. Fer and on hehalf of the Board of Blrectors of
Chartered Assauntants . Cli Housing Elnanca Limita
ICA| Firm Registzatlon No, T16836W .

- — T / s
Rakesh Kaut  Ramadirishnan — /

Panish Kankan
Partner Dirgcter Director
hembership Me." 133020 DIN: 03385665 Din: DB303198
Place: Mumbal Place: Gurugrar Place: Murpbal
Date: 27 May 2024 Date: 27 May 2024 Duta: 27 May 2024
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Mambership No: 417923

Plage! Guruaram Place: Gurugrém
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data ynless stated otherwisa)
Disclosures reguired by National Housing Bani

Minimum dis¢losures

The following additional disclosures have been given as per the Master Diraction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Diractions, 2021 read with Master Direction - Reserva Bank of india {(Non-Banling Financtal

Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023,

Summary of Material Accounting Policles

The accounting policies regarding key areas of aperations are disclosed as Note 3

Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024,

of Accounting palicy to the Standalone Financlal

Disclosure;
Capltal
" As at As at
Particulars 31.03-2024 31-03-2023
i) CRAR (%) 106.25% 34.91%
i) CRAR - Tier | capital {3) 105.67% © 33.66%
fii}  [CRAR - Tler il capital {36} 0.58% 1.25%
iv)  |Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tlerl| capital - -
vl |Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
Reserve Fund ufs 29C of NHB Act, 1987
Particulars As at As at
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 25C of the National Houslng Bank Act, 1987 17,825 11,869
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36{1){villjof Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken Into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c} Total - -
Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawa! during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred u/s 29€C of the NHB Act, 1987 4,517 5,958
k) Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1){viil} of Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken into account’ for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHE Act, 1987
Less:
a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of . - -
the NHE Act, 1987
b] Amount withdrawn from the Speclal Reserve u/s 36(1){wil) - -
of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
which has been taken into account for the purpase of provision
u/s 29C of the NHRB Act, 1987
Bzlance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29¢ of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 22,342 17,825
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1}{viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken Into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Sectlon 25C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total 22,342 17,825




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure ] to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, excapt for share data unless stated otherwise)

3. Investment
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 21 March 2023
{1) Value of Investments
{i}  Gross Value of Investments
{a) iniIndia 16,887 16,190
{b} Outside India, - -
{li}  Provisions for Depreciation
{a) Inlindia - -
{b} Outside India, - -
{iifl  MNetValue of Investments .
{a) Inlindia 16,987 16,190
{b)  Qutside India. - -
{2) Moverment of provisions held  towards
{if  Opening balance - -
(i) Add: Provisiens made during the year - -
(i} Less : Write-off / write-back of excess - -
tiv]  Closing balance -
C4,  Derivatlves

a) There are no forward rate agreement/ Interest rate swap entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023, .

b} There are no exchange traded interest rate derivatives entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023,

¢} The Company does not have any risk management policy periaining to derfvatives, associated risks and business purpose served as
the Company does not take any of the derivatives mentioned in a and b above during the year ended 21 March 2024 and 31 March
2023,

¢ There were no non-performing financial assets purchased or sold during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

C6.  Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

C6.1 There are no purchase of 'not in default category’ financial assets during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended
March 2024 31 March 2023

Entity NBFC HFC

Count of foan accounts assigned 38 276

Amount of loan accounts assigned 68,963 623,457

Retention of beneficlal economic interest {VIRR) 10% 59%-10%*

Weighted average maturity (Residual Maturity) {months) 162 197

Weighted average holding period (months} 24 19

Covarage of tangible security coverage 100% 100%

Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated Unrated

*273 loan count have 10% MRR and 3 loan count have 5% MAR
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Clix Housing Finance Lirnited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount inINR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

{i} Exposuras
Exposure to Real Fstate Sactor

Categor Asg at As at
Bory 31March 2024 | 31March 2023
1} Direct exgosure
{a) Residential Martgages - 840,011 1,158,437
Lending fully secured by mortgages on restdential
property that s or will be occuged by the borrower or that is rented:
b} Commercial Real Estate - 120 11%
Lending secured by mortgages on cormmercial real estates {office bulidings,
retail  space, multipurpese commercial  premises, mult-famlly  residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commerclal premises, industrlal - warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, ete.). Exposure
wauld alse include
non-fund based (NFB] limits;
{c} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securlties (MBS} and other securitised exposures
{a) Residentlzl . _
()} Commerclal Real Estate - -
2} Indirect expasure
Fund based and non-fund based expasures on National Housing Bank [NHB) and
Housing Finance Cornpanies {HFCs) ) _ "
Tatal Exposure to Real Estate Sector 540,131 1,158,556
(i) Exposure to Capltal Market
A5 at As at
Category 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a) direct frvestment In equity chares, convertible bonds, convertinle dahentures
and unlts of equity- oriented mutual funds the corpus of which iz not exclusively
invasted in corporate debt; '

b] advances agalnst shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on cesn basis
to individuals for investment in shares [including IPQs/ESOPS), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

¢} advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bands or
convertible debentures or unlts of aquity orlented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

di advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the coliateral
securlty of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures ar units of equity
oriented mutual funds Le. where the primary security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertlble  debenturesfunits of  equity oriented mutusl funds dees not
fully cover the advances;

e) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; .

f} loans sanctiened to corporates against the security of shares / bonds/ debentures or
other securltles or on clean basis for meeting promoter’'s contribution to the equity of new
companiesin anticipation of raising resources;

gt bridge Inans to companies against expected equity lowsfissues;

R} Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs i respect of primary issue of
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of eguity orientad mutual
funds:

1 Financing ta stockbrokers for margin trading;
il Al exposures ta Alternative Investment Funds:
(1) Category |

[ii} Category ||

{ili] Category I1];

Total Exposure to Capital Market Sector
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Clix Housing Finance Limlted
Anzewure 1 to Notes to finencial stetament for the year snded 31 March 2024
[All ameuint In INR thausands, sxcart for shere data unless stabad otherwise}

[} Details of fi ing of pavent comy p

There has been na financing made by the Company of parent company's products durlng the yesr ended 31 hisrch 2024 snd 31 March 2023,

(1] Detzids of Singla Barrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Lim |t (GBI}

Dur]ng the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 Mareh 2023 the Company's cradit eXposures to singls borowers and group borrowars were within tha prudential axpesure

Iimifts,

(v} Unseewrad Advances

Total laans 2 on 31 March 2024, Includes zera unsecured loans {31 March 2023: INR 90,00]

f¥i) Exp to Eroup cempan|  in real eatate hosiness
5N, Daseription Amonnt # of owmud fund
m Frpasure to any slngle antity in a groug engaged In real
estate businass - .90
i Exposure to all entltias tn a group engaged In real sstate
|business - 0.00%

[vli) Reglstration obtained from other financlal sector regulators
The Company has obtainad reglstration from Fiaancial Intelligance Lnits, India vida Registratloa Mo. FIOQ0ODE30,

Bisdosura of Penaltles i | by f{HB and ather regulators

Mo penalty has baen Imposed by the NHE or any ather regulater during the year,
Refated party transactions

Plazse refer Note 33 for datailed note on Related party trenectlons,

Growp Structura

Please rafar Nota 33 for gralp structure.

Ratings ascigned by ot edit rating agendes and migration of ratings during the year

45 of 31 March 2624, thers gra ratings being asslghed which ara glven In the balew table,

Rating a=signed
As at 31 March 2024 As at31 March 2023

Instrurment Rating agency

Acuite ratlngs &
Barl loans raseerch f

Brickwork ratings

i
Aeults At Aclite Adc / BUR Ade

Aculte ratings &

Long term debt programme research / Acuite A+

AcuTte A f BWR A+

Remuneration of diractors

No rerplineration hat been paid bo directors durlng the vaar (31 March 2023: Nit),

Managament

Refer to the Management Discussian end Analysls report for the ralevant disclasures,

et Profit or Loss for the period, prior period terms and cfangos inaccounting pollcies

Buring the year there were ne prior perlad itams witich hed an impact on cur rent vear's profit and loes

Revanus fecognitdon

Thare have bean na instances whare revanue recognition has bean pestponed pending tha resalution of significant uncertalnties, Plaase refar Noté 3.3 far ravenus

recognition poliey.

Conzolldated Financied {CFS)

The: Company dees hot hawe any investment In subsidiary/, fate/ Jolnt venture and hance requd it of ldated fnancial

Provisions and Contlngancies

Brezk up of 'Frovislons enct Contingencies' shown under the head For the year ended For the year endad .
Expenditura o Prafit and Loss Accoimt 81 March 2§24 31 March 2023
|Erevision for depraciation on investmant - -
Erovision made towards Incame Tex {138 23,37
Frovizlon towards NPA {5,991} 4,697
Pravislan For standard agsets* 71,442, 58318
Other provislops and cortinge neles™* (2254} L 15451

* Includes ECL on CRE of INR 1 [31 March 2023: INR 9]

ks 1= ot apg

** Dther provisions and cantinganchas includes ECL on oan commitrsent amaunting te M (31 March 2023: INR [266Y), ECL on ather financlals assets INR{ 775] {31 March

2023: INR 1582) g ECL adjusted against Interest Income an stege 3 assets amounting to (R (1478] { 31 March 2023: {1986)).




Cllx Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

{ii) Housing Non-Housing
Break up of Loan & Advances and For the year For the year For the year For the year
Provisions thereon ended ended ended ended

31-03-24 31-33-23 31-03-24 31-03-23

Standard assets
{a) Total Outstanding Amount 427,678 593,609 146,022 497,757
{b} Provigion made 4374 42,929 1,678 34,566
Sub-Standard assets
{a) Total Outstanding Amount 27,636 29,554 13,669 21,815
{b] Provision made 6,880 10,700 3917 7,898
Doubtful assets - Category |
{a) Total Qutstanding Amount 6,785 5,242 18,341 10,579
(k) Provision made 2,036 1,398 5,503 3,830
Doubtful assets - Category Il
{a} Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
{b) Provision made - - - -
Doubtful assets - Category Il
{a) Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
{b} Provision made - - - -
Loss assots
{a) Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
{h} Provision made - - - -
Total
{2) Total Outstanding Amount 452,099 628,405 178,032 530,151
{b] Provision made 13,290 55,527 11,098 46,294

€19, Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the financial year endad 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

€20, Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures' and NPAs

a. Concantration of Advances ™

b.

Particulars As at As at
31 vtarch 2024 | 31 March 2023
Total Advances to twanty largest borrowers 168,278 294,773
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest horrowers to Total 26% 25%
Advances of the HFC °
Coneentration of Exposures ¥
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 168,278 294,773
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to 6% 5%
Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers
*Grass of impairment loss allowance
¢. Concentration of NPAs
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 |
33,504 32,994

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

C21. Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in

5r.No., (Sector
r-No that sector

A Housing Loans
Indlviduals 7.45%,
Builders/Project loans -

Corporates n
Others {specify) ) C
B. Non Housing Loans :
Individuals 17.98%

Blwinie

Bullders/Project loans -

Corporates M
Others (Inter-carporate loan) -

Er il | ma ) 2

€22, Movement of NPAs

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{i} |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%} 7.74% 3.78%
{ii} |Movement of NPAs (Gross)
{a) Opening balance 67,191 65,426
{h) Additlons during the year 39,953 55,565
{c} Reductions during the year {40,712) (53,800}
{d) Closing halance 66,432 67,191
(i} {Movement of Net NPAs
{a) Opening halance 42,864 45,787
{h} Additions during the year 31,272 35,783
{c) Reductions during the year ) {26,039) - (38,716}
{d) Closing balance 48,057 42,864
{ii}) | Movement of Provislon for NPAs {excluding provision on standargd assets)
{a} Opening balance 24,326 | 19,628
(b} Provisions made during the year 8,681 19,783
{c} Write-off / write-back of excess provisions : {14,672} {15,085)
{d} Closing balance 18,335 24,326




Clix Howsing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share datz unlass stated atherwise)

£23. Disclosure of Complaints

For the year ended | For the year ended
. MO, . ho, Partlcul
51 fo. | Sub $r. no artieitars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Complaints recelved by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 0 0
2 Number of complaints recejved during the year 18 61
3 . Number of complaints disposed off during the year 17 61
3,1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 1 -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable compialnts recelved by the NBFC from the - -
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resclved in favour of the NBFC by office - -
of Ombudsman
5.2 Of 5, number of complalnts resolved through - -
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolvad after passing of Awards by - -
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipufated time {other - -
than those appealed)
Grounds of Number of Number of % of increase in the Numbaer of Of 5, number of .
Cormplaints complaints complaints number of complaints |Complaints Pending complaints
pending at the | received during | recelved of the previous | atthe end of the |pending beyond 30
beginning of the year year year days
the year _
1 2 3 4 6
F.Y. 2023-24
Fareclosure 5 76%
Related ) Rhst ) )
Banking Related - 2 92% - -
PMAY Status - 0 -100% - -
Extended
Collection Chase ) 2 100% 1 )
CIBIL Related - 1 -50% - -
MISC - 6 500% - -
F.Y. 2022-23
Foreclosure
Related ) 23 7% ’ )
Banking Related - 28 271% - -
PMAY Related - 2 -78% - -
Extended
Colfection Chase ) 1 67% ] )
Loan cancellation
- 2 100% - -
related
MISC - 1 -75% - -
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
Ovarseas Assets {for thosa with loint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

There were no overseas assets as at 31 March 2024 and 21 March 2023.

Off-balance Sheet 5PVs sponsored

There were no off-balance sheet $PVs sponsored by the company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Leans against security of single product - gold jewsllery:

The company has not granted any (oans agalnst gold |awellery as collateral.
There were no fraud reported during the year {31 March 2023: i},

Advances agalnst intangible securities
The Company has not given any loans against intangible securities.

Principal Business Criteria for HFCs

"Housfng finahce company” shall mean a company incorporated under the Companles Act, 2013 that fulfils the following conditions:

a) Itis an NBFC whose financial assets, In the business of providing finance for housing, constitute at least 60% of its total assets {netted off by

intangible assets).

b} Out of the total assets (netted off by Intangible assets), not less than 50% should be by way of housing financing for individuals.

Principal business criteria for the Company is as below,

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Total Assets 821,717
Less: Intangible assets# {125,291)
Mettotal Assets 695,426
Housing Finance 462,099
Individual Housing Finance 462,099
Percentage of housing finance to total aszets {netted off intangible assets) 66.35%
66.35%

Percentage of individual housing finance to total assets {netted off intangible assets)

# Intanglble assets Include prepaid expenses, EIS recelvable, Deferred tax assets and Other Intangible Assets.




Clix Hausing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 ta Natas to Enancial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amount in BR thousands, except For share data unlass stated atherwise)

£30. Detrils of itlsath

of 5

tion of the C

tr ¥ &5 an orlginat

In resp

amourt of securitised assets ig glvan below:

[in Crores)

Particul

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

-

o of 5PYs sponsared by the HFC for securltisation transactlons

2

2

~

Total amouat of secyritised assets as per hooks of the SPVs sponsorad

20.74

3449

Tedal amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balence
shewet**

() Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements

(i} or-balance sheet exposuras bowards Cradit Enhangersants

a) Flxe¢l Deposlts and Mutual Funds

2.63

2,55

bl Pass through Certificates

053

0.53

Amount of expesures to securktizatlon transactions other than MRA

[) Off-balance sheet exposures tuwards Credit
Enbgngsments

g) Exposure to swn securitisations®

b} Exposure to third party securitisations

*Carperate guarantee given by Cifx Capital Services Private Limited INR 1.45 £r a3 on 31 March 2024 { 31 March 2023: 1.45 Cr)

** Minfmum Retention Ratio

C81. Sectoral Exposure

In ¢eores;

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Total Exposure
{includes on balange|
sheat snd off -
batanca sheet
aynasteal,

Sectors

Gross NPAg

Percentage of Gross
KP4s to total axposura
in that sector

Total Exposure
(Includes on halance
sheet and off -halence
sheet exposura)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of
Grass NPAs to total
exposura In that
sechor

Agriculture and allled actlvitles - -

Industry “ -

Services : . .

Sl Ul L

Persgnal Loans

45.20 3.44

{i] Housing Loans

7.45%

62.83

348

5.54%)

|1} Non Housing Loans 17.80 .20

44.02

3.24

7.26%

0.01

G.00%|

fill} Othars 0.01 -

Total of Personal Loans 64.01 £.64

17.98%
0.00%
10.38%

106,86

6.72

6.29%

g

0.00%|

9.00

0.00%

Financial Sarviras [lntar-corporate loan) - -
32, Intra-gimup exposures¥ -
Particulars As at 31 March 2024

1 [Total amount of Intra-group exposuras - -
2_.|Total amount of top 20 Intrs-group exposures :
3 |Parcentaga of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the HFC on 0.00%,|
borrawers.

*Includes Inter-corporate [oan glven by the Company, & does not Include Intercorporate loan taken by the Compnay, other Intergo p

As at 31 March 2023
90,000
90,000
TiTH

[N —
i T

hi

¥ Ry

€33, Breach of Covenant

There is ng breach of tha terms af cavenants In respect of debtt securlties issuac and Barrowings {other than Debt Securitlest durlng the year endad 31 March 2024, {31 March
2023: There was no breach of the terms of covenants In raspect of debt securities issues and Borrowings {ather than Debt Securities), excopt one case where abreach of the

covenant reported to iender, none of the lender dld taka any action on the same and same was cured by 31 March 2023).

34, Divergence In Assat Classification and Provisioning

This disclosave is not applicable to the Company since the NHE has not identifled any divergence in gross HPA regorted by the Company

(35, Unhedged forefgn currency axposura

There were no unhedged foreign currency exposure during the year ended 21 March 2024, (31 March 2023; Nil)
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Clix Housing Finance Limited .
Ahnexure 1 to Notes to Bnancial statement for the vear ended 31 March 2024
1Al amount i INR thousands, except for share date unless stated otherwise]

Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Housing Finance Cotpany as required In terrns of Paragraph 16 of Master Direction — Non-Banking Flnancial Company -
Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021
Particulars

Liahbllitles sldes 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

{1} |Loans and advances avalled by the MBFC's Inclushve of Amonnt Am
Qunt
inbgrest accrued thereon but not pald: cutstanding Amaunt overdue Amount outstanding overdue

a) Debentures : Secured - - 406,253 -
 Unsecured - - - .
{Othar than falling within the meaning of public
deposits)
b Deferred Credits - - - .
&l Term Laans .- - - -
d] Inter-corporate leans and borrewing - - - .
a} Commercial Paper - - .
) Public Deposit - - . .
g} Other Loans:-
External commercial borrowlngs - . “ .
Bank overdraft - “ - .
Working Capital Dernand Loan - “ - .
Borrowing against Securitized Fortfolio 175,971 308,713

Flrance lease obligation - . - .

Assets slda: Amount cutstanding | Amoust outstanding
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(2} |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bllts recalvables [other than those
Includad in {3) balow]:

Secured 640,131 1,068,555
Unsecured - o0, Qo0
Break up of Leased Asseis and stock on hire and other assets countlng
{3). | towards AFC activities

Il Lease assets including lease rentais under sundry
a) Firancial lease - Ca
b} Dperating lease - -
i} Stock on hire including hive chargas under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hirg - .
‘| b Repossessed Asssts ’ - .

fil), Dther loans counting kowards AFC activitles

a} Loans where assets have been repossessed 13,185 35,491

b} Loans other than (a) abgwve - R

{4}  [Breal-up of Investments:

Cutrant Investments |

3. Quotad:

(I Shares: {a) Equity - -
{b) Prefarence - -

{ii) Debentures and Boncls - -

{lii) Unfts of mutual funds 11,672 10,875

liv) Government Securltles ) - -

v} Others - -

2. Uniqueoted:
{i] Shares: [a) Equity - -

th} Preference ' - .
{ii} Debeniyres and Bonds - .
{iiiy Ynits of mutual funds - : .
{iv} Goverament Sacurltias . .
[v] Others - .

"\ Ly Terrn fnwestmants:
1. Quotad:
1+ Shares: {a) Equlty - -
(b} Preference - .
{i1y Debentures and Bonds - .
(it} Units of mutuak funds - .
1] Government Securities . .
{v} Cthers - .

2. Uskquotad:
(i) Shares: {a) Equity - -

(b} Preference . - _
{ii} Debentures and Bonds - .
{1} Unlts of mutual funds - .
{lv] Government Securlties - .
(v} Others Lt e,




Clx Housing Finance Limited

Annexura 1 to Notas to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Adl amount in INR thousands, except for thare data unless statad otherwise)

{5} Borrower group-wisa classification of assat< financed as in (2} and (3) above:

Catapory

Amount net of gravisions

31-May-24

31-Aar23

Lnsecure:

Fotal

Unsecured

Total

Secured

1. Related Partlas

{a) Subsidiaries
{b) Compainles In the same group

[£] Other related parties

&3,967

83,967

615,743

615,743

872,768

972,953

2. Other than related parties

Total

£15,743

515,743

972,768

83,967

1,056,736

(8} |investor group-wise classification of all investments [current and Yong term) In shares and securitiss {both quated and unquoted):

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

Category

Market Value /
Break up or fair
value or NAV

Bank Value {Net of
Provisions)

Market value / Braak up
arfatr value or NAY

Book Vafua
{Net of
Provisions)

1. Related Parties:-
{a} Subsidraries
(b) Carmpanies in the same group

{c] Other related parties
2, Dther than related parties

15,987

16,957

16,180

Total

16,387

16,987

16,190

15,190

16,150

173 lOther Information

31.Mar-24

31-Mar-23

v |Gross Mon-Performing Assets

{a] Related parttes

(b} Cther than relatad parties

66,432

673191

i} [Net Non-Performing Assets

[a) Helated parties

[b] Other than reiated parties

48,097

42 B64

iitt | Assets acqulred in satlsfaction of debt




